

UNIFORM PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING INFORMAL BIDDING

(PROJECT VALUE \$60,001 to \$200,000)

BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

8000 Aztec Way
Antelope, CA 95843

PAINT – PORTABLES PROJECT Bid No. 24-04

April 15, 2024

Center Joint Unified School District 8408 Watt Avenue Antelope, CA 95843

TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE CALLING FOR BIDS	3
NSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDERS	6
BID PROPOSAL	9
NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION	12
DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS	13
SITE-VISIT CERTIFICATION	15
CONTRACT FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS	16
FERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS	19
SPECIAL CONDITIONS	26
PAYMENT BOND	27
PERFORMANCE BOND	30
CERTIFICATE OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE	34
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION	35
GUARANTEE	36
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS	37
ATTACHMENT 1 - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS & DRAWINGS	39

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION	DESCRIPTION
01 21 00	Cash Allowances
01 31 19	Project Meetings & Procedures
01 35 76	Alteration Project Procedures
01 45 00	Quality Control
01 50 00	Temporary Facilities and Controls
01 73 29	Cutting and Patching
01 74 23	Final Cleaning
09 90 00	Exterior Paints and Coatings
EXHIBIT	Lead/Asbestos Inspections: Hazardous Materials Report (PENDING)
DRAWING	Dudley ES Paint Drawing - Portables

NOTICE CALLING FOR BIDS

TO ALL QUALIFIED BIDDERS FOR: C-33 Paint - Portables

DISTRICT	CENTER JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT ("DISTRICT")
PROJECT DESCRIPTION	Dudley Elementary School – Paint - Portables
	Bid No. 24-04
JOB WALK	Mandatory Job Walk on:
	Wednesday, April 17, 2024, beginning promptly at 4:00pm
	Location: Meet at front of the school
PRE-BID INQUIRIES	Submit no later than:
	12:00 PM, Friday, April 19, 2024
PRE-BID RESPONSES/ADDENDUMS	Monday, April 22, 2024
DEADLINE TIME/DATE FOR	2:00:00 PM
SUBMISSION OF BID PROPOSALS	Thursday, April 25, 2024
LOCATION FOR RECEIPT OF BID	CJUSD Facilities Office – 8408 Watt Avenue, Antelope, CA 95843
LOCATION FOR OBTAINING BID	District Website - https://www.centerusd.org/About-Us/General-
AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	information/Request-For-Proposal/index.html

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to the Informal Bidding Procedures pursuant to the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) Public Contract Code §22000 *et seq.*, the District, acting by and through its Board of Education, will receive up to, but not later than the above-stated date and time, Bid Proposals for the Contract for the Work generally described as:

Dudley Elementary School

Paint - Portables Bid #24-04

- 1. Qualified Bidders. The District will consider a Bid Proposals only if submitted by a Bidder who is on the District's Informal Bidding Qualified Bidders List for the Contractors' License classification set forth above ("Qualified Bidder") at the time of submitting the Bid Proposal. A Bid Proposal submitted by a Bidder who is not a Qualified Bidder will be rejected for non-responsiveness. To review the current list of Qualified Bidders and/or to be added to the List, complete the "Notice Inviting Interested Contractors" form which can be downloaded from the District website https://www.centerusd.org/About-Us/General-information/Request-For-Proposal/index.html or request a form via email to centerjusdprequal@capitalpm.com.
- 2. <u>Submittal of Bid Proposals</u>. All Bid Proposals shall be submitted on forms furnished by the District. Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope, bearing on the outside, the bidder's name, address, telephone number, and California Contractor's License number, and the name of the Project for which the bid is submitted. Bid Proposals must conform with, and be responsive to, the Bid and Contract Documents, copies of which may be obtained from the District as set forth above. Only Bid Proposals submitted to the District at or prior to the date and time set forth above shall be considered.

- 3. Project Information; Bid and Contract Documents. The Bid and Contract Documents and additional Project information are available online on the District's webpage https://www.centerusd.org/About-Us/General-information/Request-For-Proposal/index.html. Any and all Project Addenda will be posted on the District webpage. It shall be Bidder's sole responsibility to conduct periodic checks of the District webpage to identify and download any Project Addenda. Incomplete, inaccurate, or untrue responses or information provided therein by a bidder shall be grounds for the District to reject such submissions for non-responsiveness.
- 4. Documents Accompanying Bid Proposal. The following must be submitted with the Bid Proposal:
 - Bid Proposal
 - Non-Collusion Declaration
 - Designation of Subcontractors Form
 - Site Visit Certification

All of the above must be in the form and content included with the Contract Documents.

- 5. Prevailing Wage Rates. Pursuant to California Labor Code §1773, the Department of Industrial Relations has determined the generally prevailing rates of wages in the locality in which the Work is to be performed. These determinations, entitled "PREVAILING WAGE SCALE" may be viewed and obtained by accessing the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement databases at http://www.dir.ca.gov/dirdatabases.html. The Contractor awarded the Contract for the Work shall post a copy of all applicable prevailing wage rates for the Work at conspicuous locations at the Site of the Work. The Contractor and all Subcontractors performing any portion of the Work shall pay not less than the applicable prevailing wage rate for the classification of labor provide by their respective workers in prosecution and execution of the Work. During the Work and pursuant to Labor Code §1771.4(a)(4), the Department of Industrial Relations shall monitor compliance with prevailing wage rate requirements and enforce the Contractor's prevailing wage rate obligations.
- 6. <u>Contractors' License Classification</u>. Pursuant to California Public Contract Code §3300, the District requires that Bidders possess the following classification(s) of California Contractors License at the time of submission of the Bid Proposal: **C-33 Painting and Decorating**. Any Bidder not so duly and properly licensed shall be subject to all penalties imposed by law. No payment shall be made for work, labor, materials or services provided under the Contract for the Work unless the Bidder awarded the Contract is properly and duly licensed to perform the Work at all times.
- 7. Pre-Bid Inquiries. Bidders may submit and are solely and exclusively responsible for submitting pre-bid inquiries or clarification requests before the latest date for submittal of pre-bid inquiries as referenced in the Notice to Bidders. Pre-bid inquiries or clarification requests shall be submitted in writing to the Owner's Representative Sharon Thomas (SharonT@capitalpm.com) not less than six days prior to bid opening. The email subject line should include "Dudley ES Paint Portables Project 24-04". A written response to timely pre-bid clarifications requests which materially affects the Bidders' price will be made by addendum issued by the District not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to bid opening. Failure to request interpretation or clarification of any portion of the Contract Documents pursuant to the foregoing is a waiver of any discrepancy, defect or conflict therein. Inquiries within the time stated above will not be accepted.
- 8. <u>No Withdrawal of Bid Proposals</u>. Any Bid Proposal may be withdrawn, either personally or by written request, at any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipts of Bid Proposals. The bid security

for a bid withdrawn prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids, in accordance with this paragraph, shall be returned. Bid Proposals shall not be withdrawn by any Bidder for a period of sixty (60) days after the opening of Bid Proposals. During this time, all Bidders shall guarantee prices quoted in their respective Bid Proposals.

- 9. <u>Job-Walk</u>. Job Walk requirements are set forth above. If the Job Walk is mandatory, the Bid Proposal submitted by a Bidder whose representative(s) did not attend the entirety of the Mandatory Job Walk will be rejected by the District as being non-responsive.
- 10. Alternates. Not Used.
- 11. <u>Award of Contract</u>. The Contract will be awarded to the lowest responsive responsible bidder by action of the governing Board. The District reserves the right to reject any or all Bid Proposals or to waive any irregularities or informalities in any Bid Proposal or in the bidding.

[END OF SECTION]

INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDERS

<u>Preparation and Submittal of Bid Proposal</u>. All information required by the bid forms must be completely and accurately provided. Numbers shall be stated in both words and figures where so indicated in the bid forms; conflicts between a number stated in words and in figures are governed by the words. Partially completed Bid Proposals or Bid Proposals submitted on forms not issued by the District are non-responsive and will be rejected. The District will include **\$35,000** in an allowance to cover any unforeseen conditions. Bidder's **total bid** shall include contractor's base bid plus District allowance.

- 1. <u>Documents Accompanying Bid Proposal; Signatures</u>. Any document submitted with a Bid Proposal which is not complete, accurate and executed, as required by each document, will result in the Bid Proposal being deemed non-responsive.
- 2. <u>Modifications</u>. Changes to the bid forms which are not specifically called for or permitted may result in the District's rejection of the Bid Proposal as being non-responsive. Bid Proposals must not contain any erasures, interlineations or other corrections unless the same are suitably authenticated by affixing in the margin immediately opposite such erasure, interlineation or correction the surname(s) of the person(s) signing the Bid Proposal. Any Bid Proposal not conforming to the foregoing may be deemed by the District to be non-responsive. If any Bid Proposal or portions thereof, is determined by the District to be illegible, ambiguous or inconsistent, whether by virtue of any erasures, interlineations, corrections or otherwise, the District may reject such a Bid Proposal as being non-responsive.
- 3. Examination of Site and Contract Documents. Each Bidder shall at its sole cost and expense inspect the Site to become fully acquainted with conditions affecting the Work and carefully review the Contact Documents; submission of a Bid Proposal is prima facie evidence of such action by the Bidder. The failure of a Bidder to receive or examine any of the Contract Documents or to inspect the Site shall not relieve such Bidder from any obligation under the Contract Documents.
- 4. <u>District's Right to Modify Contract Documents</u>. The District may modify the Work, the Contract Documents, or any portion(s) thereof by the issuance of written addenda issued to all Bidders issued a set of Contract Documents. *Bidders are solely responsible for reviewing and confirming all addenda issued by the District. If the District issues any addenda during the bidding, the failure of any Bidder to acknowledge such addenda in its Bid Proposal may render the Bid Proposal non-responsive and rejected*.
- 5. <u>Non-Collusion Declaration</u>. No person or entity shall submit or be interested in more than one Bid Proposal for the Work; provided, however, that a person or entity that has submitted a sub-proposal to a Bidder or who has quoted prices for materials to a Bidder is not thereby disqualified from submitting a subproposal, quoting prices to other Bidders or submitting a Bid Proposal for the Work. The form of Non-Collusion Declaration included in the Contract Documents must be completed and duly executed on behalf of the Bidder; failure of a Bidder to submit a completed and executed Non-Collusion Declaration with its Bid Proposal will render the Bid Proposal non-responsive.
- 6. Qualifications Statement. Not Used.

- 7. <u>Subcontractors</u>. Each Bidder shall submit identify its proposed Subcontractors whose work is valued at one-half of one percent (.05%) or more of the Bid Proposal amount on the form of Subcontractors List for the Work. All Bidders are encouraged to disseminate all of the Contract Documents to all persons or entities submitting sub-bids to the Bidder. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5, all subcontractors (of any tier) performing work on this Project must be properly registered with Department of Industrial Relations.
- 9. <u>Award of Contract</u>. The Contract for the Work, if awarded, will be to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest priced responsive Bid Proposal. The District's Board of Education will take action to award the Contract. Bidders will be notified in writing of the Bidder to whom the District has awarded the Contract.
- 10. <u>Bid Protests</u>. Any bid protest shall be filed in writing with the District's Director of Facilities not more than three (3) business days after the date of the bid opening. An e-mail address shall be provided and by filing the protest, protesting bidder consents to receipt of e-mail notices for purposes of the protest and protest related questions and protest appeal, if applicable. The protest shall specify the reasons and facts upon which the protest is based.
 - 10.1. Resolution of Bid Protest. Once the bid protest is received, the apparent lowest responsible bidder will be notified of the protest and the evidence presented. If appropriate, the apparent low bidder will be given an opportunity to rebut the evidence and present evidence that the apparent low bidder should be allowed to perform the work. If deemed appropriate by the District, an informal hearing will be held. District will issue a written decision within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the protest, unless factors beyond the District's reasonable control prevent such resolution. The decision on the bid protest will be copied to all parties involved in the protest.
 - 10.2. <u>Appeal</u>. If the protesting bidder or the apparent low bidder is not satisfied with the decision, the matter may be appealed to the Districts' Superintendent or his or her designee, within three (3) business days after receipt of the District's written decision on the bid protest. The appeal must be in writing and sent via overnight registered mail with all accompanying information relied upon for the appeal and an e-mail address from which questions and responses may be provided.
 - 10.3. <u>Appeal Review</u>. The Superintendent or his or her designee shall review the decision on the bid protest from the Director of Facilities and issue a written response to the appeal, or if appropriate, appoint a Hearing Office to conduct a hearing and issue a written decision. The written decision of the Superintendent or the Hearing Officer shall be rendered within fifteen (15) calendar days and shall state the basis for the decision. The decision concerning the appeal will be final and not subject to any further appeals.
 - 10.4. Reservation of Rights to Proceed with Project Pending Appeal. The District reserves the right to proceed to award the Contract for the Project and commence construction pending an appeal. If there is State funding or a critical completion deadline, the District may choose to shorten the time limits set forth in this Section due to the urgency of proceeding with work if written notice is provided to the protesting party. E-mailed notice with a written confirmation sent by first class mail shall be sufficient to constitute written notice. If there is no written response to a written notice shortening time, the District may proceed with the award of the Contract.

- 10.5. <u>Finality</u>. Failure to comply with this bid protest procedure shall constitute a waiver of the right to protest and shall constitute a failure to exhaust the protesting Bidder's administrative remedies.
- 11. <u>CUPCCAA</u>. This Project is being let in accordance with the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting ("CUPCCAA") set forth in Public Contract Code section 22000 *et seq*. Bidders shall comply with any requirements set forth in the CUPCCAA including all guidelines and requirements in the current California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Commission Cost Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual.

[END OF SECTION]

BID PROPOSAL

PROJECT:	Dudley Elementary School – Paint - Portables
BID #24-04	

Bidder Name		
Bidder		
Representative(s)		
nepresentative(s)	Name and Title	
	Name and Title	
Bidder	Email	()
Representative(s)		Telephone
Contact Information		()
Contact information		Fax
Bidder Mailing Address		
blader Mailing Address		
	Address	
	City/State/Zip Code	
California Contractors'		
License	Number	
	Classification and Expiration Date	
DID Dogistration #	Classification and Expiration Date	
DIR Registration #	#	
	Expiration Date:	

1. Bid Proposal.

1.1. <u>Bid Proposal Amount</u>. The undersigned Bidder proposes to furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment and services necessary to complete in accordance with the Contract Documents for the Work for the sum of in words and numbers:

Paint - Portable Buildings

	Dollars	\$
CONTRACTORS BASE BID (Words)		(Numbers)

DISTRICT ALLOWANCE		\$ 35,000.00
	Dollars	¢
CONTRACTORS BASE BID PLUS DISTRICT ALLOWANCE TOTAL BID (Words)	_Donars	(Numbers)

The Bidder confirms that it has checked all of the above figures and understands that neither the District nor any of its agents, employees or representatives shall be responsible for any errors or omissions in this Bid Proposal.

1.1.	Acknowledgment of Bid Addenda. The Bidder confirms that this Bid Proposal incorporates and is
	inclusive of, all items or other matters contained in Bid Addenda, if any, issued by or on behalf of
	the District.

	Addenda Nos	Received, acknowledged
(initial)		and incorporated into this Bid Proposal.

- 1.2. Alternate Bid Items. Not Used.
- 2. <u>Documents Accompanying Bid Proposal</u>. The Bidder has submitted with this Bid Proposal the following:
 - ➤ Alternate Bid Items Proposal
 - ➤ Non-Collusion Declaration
 - Designation of Subcontractors Form
 - Site Visit Certification

The Bidder acknowledges that if this Bid Proposal and the foregoing documents are not fully in compliance with applicable requirements set forth in the Call for Bids, the Instructions for Bidders and in each of the foregoing documents, the Bid Proposal may be rejected for non-responsiveness.

- 3. <u>Award of Contract</u>. Within five (5) days after notification of award of the Contract, the Bidder awarded the Contract shall execute and deliver to the District the Contract in the form attached hereto along with:
 - Certificates of Insurance evidencing all insurance coverages required under the Contract Documents and approved additional insured endorsements naming the District as an additional insured

- Payment Bond
- Performance Bond
- > Certificate of Workers' Compensation Insurance
- Drug-Free Workplace Certificate
- Contractor Certification Regarding Background Checks

Failure of the Bidder awarded the Contract to strictly comply with the preceding may result in the District's rescission of the award of the Contract and/or forfeiture of the Bidder's Bid Security. In such event, the District may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, elect to award the Contract to the responsive responsible Bidder submitting the next lowest priced Bid Proposal, or to reject all Bid Proposals.

- 4. <u>Contractors' License</u>. The Bidder certifies that: (i) it is duly licensed, in the necessary class(es), for performing the Work of the Contract Documents, as designated by the District; (ii) that such license shall be in full force and effect throughout the duration of the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents; and (iii) that all Subcontractors providing or performing any portion of the Work are and shall remain properly licensed to perform or provide such portion of the Work.
- 5. Acknowledgment and Confirmation. The undersigned Bidder acknowledges its receipt, review and understanding of the Drawings, the Specifications and other Contract Documents pertaining to the proposed Work. By submitting this Bid Proposal, the undersigned Bidder certifies that the Contract Documents are, in its opinion, adequate, feasible, accurate and complete for the Bidder to complete the Work in a workmanlike manner within the Contract Time and for the price proposed herein. The undersigned Bidder warrants and represents to the District that it has, or has available, all necessary equipment, personnel, materials, facilities and technical and financial ability to complete the Work for the amount bid herein, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Dated	:
Ву:	(Signature of Bidder's Authorized Officer or Representative)
	(Typed or Printed Name)
Title:	

NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION

The un	dersigned declares:			
I am th	ne	[Title] of		[Name of Company],
the pa	rty making the foregoing b			
associa not dir not dir in a sh by agre bidder statem bid pri therete memb	etion, organization, or corectly or indirectly induced ectly or indirectly collude am bid, or to refrain from eement, communication, or to fix any overhead, plents contained in the bid ce or any breakdown the o, to any corporation, pare	poration. The bid is genor solicited any other bid, conspired, connived, bidding. The bidder have conference with any profit, or cost element of are true. The bidder have ereof, or the contents of the ship, company, assume the contents of	any undisclosed person, pruine and not collusive or sidder to put in a false or sharp or agreed with any bidder on the solution of the bid price of the false of the bid price, or of that of the bid price of the bid	sham. The bidder has am bid. The bidder has or anyone else to put y or indirectly, sought he bidder or any other fany other bidder. All , submitted his or her ation or data relative depository, or to any
ventur	e, limited liability compan	y, limited liability partne	bidder that is a corporation bidder that is a corporation of entity, his declaration on behalf of	ereby represents that
correc		is executed on	State of California that the	
Ву:	(Signature of Bidder's Authorized Offi	cer or Representative)		
	(Typed or Printed Name)			
Title:				

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In compliance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (California Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq.,) and any amendments thereof, each Bidder shall set forth below: (a) The name, the location of the place of business, the California contractor license number, and public works contractor registration number issued pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Contractor, who will perform work or labor or work or improvement to be performed under this Contract, or a subcontractor licensed by the State of California who, under subcontract to the Contractor, specially fabricates and installs a portion of the work or improvements according to detailed Drawings contained in the Plans and Specifications in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bid; and (b) the portion and description of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Act. The Contractor shall list only one subcontractor for each such portion as is defined by the Contractor in this bid. All subcontractors shall be properly licensed by the California State Licensing Board.

If a Contractor fails to specify a subcontractor, or if a Contractor specifies more than one subcontractor for the same portion of work to be performed under the Contract in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bid, the Contractor shall be deemed to have agreed that the Contractor is fully qualified to perform that portion, and that the Contractor alone shall perform that portion of the work.

No Contractor whose bid is accepted shall (a) substitute any subcontractor, (b) permit any subcontractor to be voluntarily assigned or transferred or allow the relevant portion of the work to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the original bid, or (c) sublet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bid where the original bid did not designate a subcontractor, except as authorized in the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act.

Subletting or subcontracting of any portion of the work in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bid where no subcontractor was designated in the original bid shall only be permitted in cases of public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding, reduced to writing as a public record, of the authority awarding this Contract setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity.

All subcontractors (of any tier) performing any portion of the work must comply with the Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 and must be properly and currently registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform public works pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 throughout the duration of the Project.

NOTE: If alternate bids are called for and bidder intends to use different or additional subcontractors on the alternates, a separate list of subcontractors must be provided for each such Alternate.

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS FORM

Work to be done by Subcontractor	Subcontractor	Location of Business	CSLB Contractor License No.	DIR Registration No

Proper Name of Bidder:	
Date:	
Name:	
Signature of Bidder Representative:	

SITE-VISIT CERTIFICATION

	PROJECT:	Dudley Elementary School – Paint - Portables #24-04
	Check whiche	ver option applies:
	conditions rel	I visited the Site of the proposed Work and became fully acquainted with the ating to construction and labor. I fully understand the facilities, difficulties, and tending the execution of the Work under contract.
	I certify that	(Bidder's
	representative conditions rel	e) visited the Site of the proposed Work and became fully acquainted with the ating to construction and labor. The Bidder's representative fully understood the culties, and restrictions attending the execution of the Work under contract.
any lia	struction Man bility for any n	lieves and releases the Center Joint Unified School District, its Architect, its Engineer, ager, and all of their respective officers, agents, employees, and consultants from nonetary or other damage(s), related to conditions that could have been identified r the Bidder's representative's visit to the Site.
and co		penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true
Date:		
Legal N	lame of Bidder	·:
Signatı	ıre:	
Print N	ame:	
Title:		

CONTRACT FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS

THIS CONTRACT FOR LA	ABOR AND MATERIALS ("Contract") is ϵ	entered into Click	k here to enter a	date., in the	City of Antelope,
County of Sacramento,	State of California, by and between th	ne CENTER JOINT	UNIFIED SCHOO	L DISTRICT, a	California school
district ("District") and	("Contractor").				

WITNESSETH, that the District and the Contractor in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein agree as follows:

- 1. The Work. Within the Contract Time and for the Contract Price, subject to adjustments thereto pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall perform and provide all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment, utilities, services and transportation to complete in a workmanlike manner all of the Work required in connection with the work of improvement commonly referred to as Dudley Elementary School Paint Portables Bid No. 24-04. The Contractor shall complete all Work covered by the Contract Documents, including without limitation, the Drawings and Specifications prepared by the Architect and other Contract Documents enumerated in Paragraph 10 below, along with all modifications and addenda thereto issued in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 2. Architect/Design Professional In Charge. Not Used.
- 3. Contract Time. The Work shall be commenced on the date stated in the District's Notice to Proceed. The Contractor shall achieve Substantial Completion of the Work FIFTY-SIX (56) days after the commencement date of the Work set forth in the Notice to Proceed.
- - **4.1.** <u>Progress Payment Retention</u>. If the Contract Price is subject to payment by the District's disbursement of Progress Payments pursuant to Article 9 of the Contract Terms and Conditions, five percent (5%) of each Progress Payment will be withheld by the District as Retention. Retention will be disbursed by the District as part of the Final Payment.
 - **4.2.** Mark-Up for Changed Work. Adjustments to the Contract Price for authorized Changes shall be limited to the actual costs of labor and materials necessary to complete the Change plus a mark-up of Ten Percent (10%) of the actual costs of labor and materials; it being agreed that the foregoing mark-up represents all compensation due the Contractor for profit, overhead/administrative costs and impacts of an authorized Change.
- 5. <u>Liquidated Damages</u>. The Contractor is subject to assessment of Liquidated Damages if the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, including adjustments thereto authorized by the Contract Documents; or fails to complete Punchlist items noted upon Substantial Completion within the time established to complete the Punchlist items. The per diem rate of Liquidated Damages assessed for each of the foregoing events is set forth below.
 - **5.1.** <u>Delayed Substantial Completion</u>. If Substantial Completion is not achieved on or before expiration of the Contract Time, the Contractor shall be liable to the District for Liquidated Damages from the date of expiration of the Contract Time to the date that the Contractor achieves Substantial Completion of the Work at the per diem rate of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS (\$250.00).
 - **5.2.** <u>Delayed Punchlist Completion</u>. If the Contractor fails to complete Punchlist within the time established pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be liable to the District for Liquidated Damages from the date established for completion of Punchlist until the date that all Punchlist is actually completed at the per diem rate of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS (\$ 250.00).

- **5.3. Surety Liability**. The Surety issuing the Performance Bond shall be liable to the District for performance and discharge of the Contractor's obligations hereunder, including without limitation, the Contractor's Liquidated Damages and warranty obligations.
- 6. <u>Limitation on Damages</u>. If the District breaches or defaults in its performance of its obligations under the Contract Documents, the damages, if any, recoverable by the Contractor shall be limited to general damages which are directly and proximately caused by said breach or default of the District and shall exclude any and all special or consequential damages. The Contractor expressly waives any right to and foregoes the recovery of any special or consequential damages from the District including, without limitation, damages for: (i) lost or impaired bonding capacity; and/or (ii) loss of profits arising out of or in connection with any past, present, or future work of improvement; and/or (iii) loss of productivity.
- **7.** <u>Insurance</u>. The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain insurance coverages required by the Contract; the minimum coverage amount for each policy of insurance of the Contractor and Subcontractor shall be as set forth below.
 - **7.1.** <u>Insurance Requirements for Contractor.</u> The minimum coverage amounts for each policy of insurance of the Contractor shall be as follows:

Policy of Insurance	Minimum Coverage Amount
Commercial General Liability Insurance	Per Occurrence: One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)
	Aggregate: Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000)
Workers' Compensation	In accordance with the Laws
Employers Liability	One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)
Builder's Risk	Full insurable value of the Work;
	Seismic coverage is not required

7.2. <u>Insurance Requirements for Subcontractors</u>. The minimum coverage amounts for each policy of insurance to be obtained and maintained by each Subcontractor shall be as follows:

Policy of Insurance	Minimum Coverage Amount
Commercial General Liability Insurance	Per Occurrence: One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)
	Aggregate: Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000)
Workers' Compensation	In accordance with the Laws
Employers Liability	One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)

- 8. <u>District Representative</u>. The District Representative is Richard Putnam or his/her designee.
- 9. <u>Notices</u>. Notices of the District and Contractor to the other shall be transmitted in accordance with the Contract Documents. The effective date of notices transmitted in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be as set forth in the Contract Documents. Notices under the Contract Documents shall be addressed as follows:

If to the District:
Richard Putnam, Director of Facilities
Center Joint Unified School District
8408 Watt Avenue
Antelope, CA 95843
If to the Contractor:

10.	The Contract Documents .	The documents forming a part of the Contract Documents consist of the following, all of which	ch
	are component parts of th	e Contract Documents:	

Notice Calling for Bids Instructions for Bidders Addenda as Issued **Bid Proposal** Non-Collusion Declaration **Designation of Subcontractors**

Drug Free Workplace Certification Contract; Terms and Conditions of Contract **Payment Bond** Performance Bond Certificate of Workers' Compensation Insurance Guarantee Contractor Certification re Background Checks & Attachment A Attachment 1 Technical Specifications & Drawings

11. Authority to Execute. The individual(s) executing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor is/are duly and fully authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of Contractor and to bind the Contractor to each and every term, condition and covenant of the Contract Documents.

CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE LICENSED AND REGULATED BY THE CONTRACTORS' STATE LICENSE BOARD. ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING A CONTRACTOR MAY BE REFERRED TO THE REGISTRAR, CONTRACTORS' STATE LICENSE BOARD, P.O. BOX 2600, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95826

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the District and the Contractor as of the date set forth above.

	"DISTRICT" Center Joint Unified School District		"CONTRACTOR" [Contractor Name]
Ву:		Ву:	
	(Name Printed or Typed)		(Name Printed or Typed)
Title:		Title:	

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS

- Labor and Materials. The Contractor shall furnish and pay for all labor, materials, equipment and services necessary to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in the Contract Documents, all materials, equipment and other items incorporated into the Work shall be new and of the most suitable grade and quality for the purpose intended. The Work is subject to tests/inspections as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall afford the District, the Project Inspector, the Architect and test/inspection services with access to the Work, wherever located and whether in place or in progress. All of the Work shall conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.
- 2. Submittals. The Contractor shall submit to the District Representative or the Architect, as designated in the Contract Documents, shop drawings, product data and other submittals (collectively "Submittals") required by the Contract Documents promptly and in an orderly sequence while allowing sufficient time for review and comment. No portion of the Work requiring Submittals shall be performed until the required Submittals have been reviewed and accepted.
- 3. Construction Schedule. Contractor shall prepare a Construction Schedule in such form and format approved by the District. The Construction Schedule shall reflect all activities necessary to complete the Work and shall be in such detail as required by the Contract Documents. If a Construction Schedule is required, the Contractor shall update the schedule monthly or more frequently as directed by the District or required by the circumstances of the Work.

4. Changes.

4.1 Changes to the Work. The District may, by written order, make Changes to the Work, issue additional instructions and to add to or delete from the Work. No Change may be made without the prior written approval and direction of the District. Adjustments of the Contract Price or the Contract Time on account of a Change authorized hereunder will only be made by written Change Order duly executed by the Contractor and the District Representative. Adjustments to the Contract Price for authorized Changes shall be limited to the actual costs of labor and materials necessary to complete the Change plus the mark-up set forth in the Contract; it being agreed that the mark-up represents all compensation due the Contractor for profit, overhead/administrative costs and impacts of an authorized Change. Changes approved by the District shall be reduced to Change Order in the form established by the District.

- Substitutions. No substitution of any specified item, product, material or system ("Specified Items") will be considered unless the Contractor submits a request to substitute Specified Items along with data substantiating the equivalency of the proposed substitution with the Specified Items not more than thirty-five (35) days after the date of award of the Contract to the Contractor. The Contractor shall reimburse the District for all costs and expenses incurred by the District to review a proposed substitution for Specified Items. The District's acceptance or rejection of a proposed substitution shall be final. No substitution accepted by the District shall increase the Contract Price or the Contract Time; provided, however, if the cost to furnish/install an approved substitution of is less than the specified Item, the Contract Price shall be reduced by such cost difference. If any Specified Items are identified in any portion of the Contract Documents as "District Standard Materials/Equipment" "match existing in use" or similar words/phrases, in accordance with Public Contract Code §3400, the District shall be deemed to have made a finding that such Specified Items are designated as "sole source" items designed to match existing and in use items. In accordance with Public Contract Code §3400, the District will not consider or accept alternatives or substitutions for any Specified Items so identified.
- 4.3 Change Orders. If the District approves of a Change, a written Change Order prepared by the Architect on behalf of the District shall be forwarded to the Contractor describing the Change and setting forth the adjustment to the Contract Time and the Contract Price, if any, on account of such Change. All Change Orders shall be in full payment and final settlement of all claims for direct, indirect and consequential costs, including without limitation, costs of delays or impacts related to, or arising out of, items covered and affected by the Change Order, as well as any adjustments to the Contract Time. Any claim or item relating to any Change incorporated into a Change Order not presented by the Contractor for inclusion in the Change Order shall be deemed waived. The Contractor shall execute the Change Order prepared pursuant to the foregoing; once the Change Order has been prepared and forwarded to the Contractor for execution, without the prior approval of the District which may be granted or withheld in the sole and exclusive discretion of the District, the Contractor shall not modify or amend the form or content of such Change Order, or any portion thereof. The Contractor's attempted or purported modification or amendment of any such Change Order, without the prior approval of the District, shall not be binding upon the District; any such unapproved modification or amendment to such Change Order shall be null, void and unenforceable. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in the Contract Documents or in the Change Order, any Change Order issued hereunder shall be binding upon the District only

upon action of the District's Board of Education approving and ratifying such Change Order. In the event of any amendment or modification made by the Contractor to a Change Order for which there is no prior approval by the District, in accordance with the provisions of this Article, unless otherwise expressly stated in its approval and ratification of such Change Order, any action of the Board of Education to approve and ratify such Change Order shall be deemed to be limited to the Change Order as prepared by the Architect; such approval and ratification of such Change Order shall not be deemed the District's approval and ratification of any unapproved amendment or modification by the Contractor to such Change Order.

- Contractor Notice of Changes. If the Contractor claims that any instruction, request, the Drawings, the Specifications, action, condition, omission, default, or other situation obligates the District to increase the Contract Price or to extend the Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Project Manager, if any, the Project Inspector and the Architect, in writing, of such claim within ten (10) days from the date of its actual or constructive notice of the factual basis supporting the same. The District shall consider any such claim of the Contractor only if sufficient supporting documentation is submitted with the Contractor's notice to the Project Inspector and the Architect. Time is of the essence in Contractor's written notice pursuant to the preceding sentence so that the District can promptly investigate and consider alternative measures to the address such instruction, request, Drawings, Specifications, action, condition, omission, default or other situation. Accordingly, Contractor acknowledges that its failure, for any reason, to give written notice (with sufficient supporting documentation to permit the District's review and evaluation) within ten (10) days of its actual or constructive knowledge of any instruction, request, Drawings, Specifications, action, condition, omission, default or other situation for which the Contractor believes there should an adjustment of the Contract Time or the Contract Price shall be deemed Contractor's waiver, release, discharge and relinquishment of any right to assert or claim any entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Time or the Contract Price on account of any such instruction, request, Drawings, Specifications, action, condition, omission, default or other situation. In the event that the District determines that the Contract Price or the Contract Time are subject to adjustment based upon the events, circumstances and supporting documentation submitted with the Contractor's written notice under this Article.
- 5. Safety; Security. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations pertaining to safety at the Site. The Contractor shall implement safety measures such as fencing, barricades, signs, lights and other precautions to prevent injury or death to persons or damage to property. The Contractor is responsible for securing the Site and Work in place or in progress (including materials/equipment/tools situated at the Site) to prevent theft, loss or damage. The District and employees, officers, agents or representatives of the District are not liable to the

Contractor, Subcontractors or their respective personnel for the loss, theft, damage or destruction of materials, equipment, tools and other personal property items, whether or not such personal property is used to complete the Work or is incorporated into the Work. The risk of such loss, theft, damage or destruction is solely that of the Contractor or Subcontractors.

Labor.

- Prevailing Wage Rates. The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall: (i) pay their respective workers at least the prevailing wage rate established for the classification, trade or work performed by each worker; and (ii) maintain complete and accurate payroll records for workers engaged in the Work. During the Work and pursuant to Labor Code §1771.4(a)(4), the Department of Industrial Relations will monitor and enforce the prevailing wage rate obligations of the Contractor and Subcontractors. The Contractor shall comply with all requirements established by the Department of Industrial Relations relating prevailing wage rates, the payment thereof and posting of notices relating thereto. The Contractor is subject to all assessments, penalties and other charges for prevailing wage rate violations.
- 6.2 <u>Apprentices.</u> Apprentices, if any engaged in performing any portion of the Work shall be in strict conformity with applicable laws, rules and regulations, including without limitation, Labor Code §§1777.5 through 1777.7, which are incorporated herein by this reference.

6.3 DIR Registration.

- 6.3.1 Contractor and Subcontractor Compliance. Strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements pursuant to Labor Code §1725.5 is a material obligation of the Contractor hereunder. The foregoing includes without limitation, compliance with DIR Registration requirements at all times during performance of the Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier. No portion of the Work is permitted to be performed by a Subcontractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor is a DIR Registered contractor. The failure of the Contractor and all Subcontractors of every tier to be DIR Registered at all times during performance of the Work is the Contractor's default of a material obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.
- 6.3.2 Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status. An affirmative and on-going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the Contractor's verification that all Subcontractors, of all tiers, are at all times during performance of the Work in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements. The Contractor shall not permit or allow any Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work without the Contractor's verification that all such Subcontractors are in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

- 6.3.3 Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non-DIR Registered Subcontractor. If any Subcontractor identified in the Contractor's Subcontractors List submitted with the Contractor's proposal for the Work is not DIR Registered at the time of opening of proposals for the Work or if a Subcontractor's DIR Registration lapses prior to or during a Subcontractor's performance of Work, the Contractor shall request the District's consent to substitute the non-DIR Registered Subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code §1771.1(c)(3) and/or Labor Code §1771.1(d).
- 6.3.4 Contractor/Subcontractor Penalties pursuant to § 1771.1(g). "If the Labor Commissioner or his or her designee determines that a contractor or subcontractor engaged in the performance of any public work contract without having been registered in accordance with this section, the contractor or subcontractor shall forfeit, as a civil penalty to the state, one hundred dollars (\$100) for each day of work performed in violation of the registration requirement, not to exceed an aggregate penalty of eight thousand dollars (\$8,000) in addition to any penalty registration fee assessed pursuant to clause (ii) of subparagraph (E) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 1725.5."
- 6.3.5 Subcontractor Penalties pursuant to § 1771.1 (h)(1).

 "In addition to, or in lieu of, any other penalty or sanction authorized pursuant to this chapter, a higher tiered public works contractor or subcontractor who is found to have entered into a subcontract with an unregistered lower tier subcontractor to perform any public work in violation of the requirements of Section 1725.5 or this section shall be subject to forfeiture, as a civil penalty to the state, of one hundred dollars (\$100) for each day the unregistered lower tier subcontractor performs work in violation of the registration requirement, not to exceed an aggregate penalty of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000)."

6.4 Certified Payroll Records.

- 6.4.1 Compliance With Labor Code §§1771.4 and 1776. A material obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is: (i) the Contractor's strict compliance with the requirements pursuant to Labor Code §§ 1771.4 and 1776 for preparation and submittal of Certified Payroll Records ("CPR"); and (ii) the Contractor's enforcement of CPR preparation and submittal for all Subcontractors of every tier.
- 6.4.2 Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contract Price. Strict compliance with CPR requirements established pursuant to Labor Code §1776 is an express condition precedent to the District's obligation to: (i) process any request for payment of any portion of the Contract Price; or (ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor. The Contractor shall demonstrate strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal requirements by delivery to the District of electronic files or hard

- copies of all CPRs submitted by the Contractor and/or Subcontractors for the Work pursuant to Labor Code §§1771.4 and 1776 concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor Commissioner. The District: (i) shall not be obligated to process or disburse any portion of the Contract Price; or (ii) shall not be deemed in default of the District's obligations under the Contract Documents unless the Contractor's demonstrates strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal requirements.
- 6.5 <u>Limits on Hours/Days of Work</u>. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall not require or permit any worker to provide more than eight (8) hours of work per day or forty (40) hours of work per week without additional compensation as mandated by law.
- 6.6 Competency and Discipline. The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor's employees, the employees of any Subcontractor and all other persons performing any part of the Work at the Site. Personnel of the Contractor or any Subcontractor shall be subject to removal from the Site for violations of applicable law or District policies. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them and shall dismiss from its employ and direct any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor to dismiss from their employment any person deemed by the District to be unfit or incompetent to perform Work.
- 6.7 Superintendent. The Contractor shall employ as full-time Superintendent fluent in verbal and written English who shall be in attendance at the Site at all times during performance of Work at the Site. The Superintendent shall be deemed the Contractor's Representative for the Work; directions, instructions or other communications to or with the Contractor's Superintendent shall be deemed directions, instructions or communications to or with the Contractor.
- 7. Subcontractors. The Work of each Subcontractor shall be set forth in a written Subcontract agreement incorporating by reference this Contract; Subcontracts shall be made available to the District for review upon request of the District. The Contractor is responsible to the District for the acts, omissions and other conduct of Subcontractors. Each Subcontractor shall maintain Workers' Compensation/Employers Liability Insurance and Commercial General Liability Insurance as required by the Contract for Labor and Materials.
- 8. Project Certification. If the Work is subject, in whole or in part, to DSA jurisdiction, the Contractor shall completely and timely complete and/or comply with all DSA requirements relating to: (i) observations/inspections of the Work during construction; and (ii) DSA PR 13-01 project inspections, tests and certification process. A material obligation of the Contractor hereunder is completion of all actions or activities required by a contractor for a work of improvement subject to DSA jurisdiction sufficient for DSA to issue a certification that the Work, as constructed, complies with the DSA approved Design Documents.

- Payment of the Contract Price. The District will make payment of the Contract Price upon completion of the Work, the Contractor's full performance of all other obligations under this Contract Documents and the Contractor's submission of a properly itemized invoice. Upon receipt of the Contractor's invoice, the District Representative will promptly verify that the Work has been completed and that the Contractor has performed all other obligations hereunder. Within thirty (30) days of the District Representative confirmation of the completion of Work and the Contractor's performance of other obligations hereunder, the District will make payment of the Contract Price. If the Contract Time is a duration of sixty (60) days or more, the Contractor may submit invoices on a monthly basis for the value of Work completed in the prior month, whereupon the District Representative will promptly verify that the Work has been completed as indicated in the Contractor's invoice. Within thirty (30) days of the date of such verification, the District will make payment equal to ninety five percent (95%) of the value of the Work completed. Within sixty (60) days of completion of all Work and the recordation of the Notice of Completion, and completion all other of the Contractor's obligations hereunder, amounts previously retained from prior invoices will be released to the Contractor. The District may, in its sole discretion, condition payment of the Contract Price, or any portion thereof, upon: (i) the Contractor's preparation of a Schedule of Values for review and acceptance by the District's Representative; (ii) the submittal of executed Waivers and Releases (on Progress Payment or Final Payment, as applicable) for the Contractor and all Subcontractors receiving any portion of the Contract Price; and/or (iii) delivery of Certified Payroll records of the Contractor and Subcontractors. The District may withhold payment of the Contract Price if: (i) there are claims or the probability of claims being submitted by Subcontractor, Material Suppliers or others in connection with the Work; (ii) defective or non-conforming Work which is not remedied; or (iii) there are any uncured Contractor defaults.
- 10. Insurance. The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall, at all times during the Work, maintain Workers' Compensation, Employers Liability, and Commercial General Liability Insurance in the minimum coverage amounts set forth in the Contract. The Contractor's Commercial General Liability Insurance shall name the District as an Additional Insured. All policies of insurance shall include provisions that the policy of insurance will not be materially modified, cancelled or allowed to expire without at least thirty (30) days advance notice to the District. Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor shall deliver Certificates of Insurance of itself and its Subcontractors evidencing the required insurance coverages.
- 11. Indemnification. Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, Architect, Construction Manager (if any), Inspector, the State of California and their officers, board members, employees, agents and independent contractors (collectively, "Indemnitees") from all liabilities, claims, actions, liens, judgments, demands, damages,

- losses, costs or expenses of any kind arising from death, personal injury, property damage or other cause based or asserted upon any act, omission, or breach connected with or arising from the progress of the Work or performance of service under this Contract or the Contract Documents. As part of this indemnity, Contractor shall protect and defend, at its own expense, Indemnitees from any legal action including attorney's fees or other proceeding based upon such act, omission, breach or as otherwise required by this section. Furthermore, Contractor agrees to and does hereby defend, indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitees from every claim or demand made, and every liability, loss, damage, expense or attorney's fees of any nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of:
 - A. Liability for (1) death or bodily injury to persons; (2) damage or injury to, loss (including theft), or loss of use of, any property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any provision of law or the Contract Documents; (4) any other loss, damage or expense, sustained by any person, firm or corporation or in connection with the Work called for in this Contract or the Contract Documents, or (5) any claims of violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or the willful misconduct of the District.
 - B. Any bodily injury to or death of persons or damage to property caused by any act, omission or breach of Contractor or any person, firm or corporation employed by Contractor, either directly or by independent contract, including all damages or injury to or death of persons, loss (including theft) or loss of use of any property, sustained by any person, firm or corporation, including the District, arising out of or in any way connected with the Work covered by this Contract or the Contract Documents, whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off District property, but not for any loss, injury, death or damages caused by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the District.
 - C. Any dispute between Contractor and Contractor's subcontractors/supplies/sureties, including, but not limited to, any failure or alleged failure of the Contractor (or any person hired or employed directly or indirectly by Contractor) to pay any subcontractor or materialman of any tier or any other person employed in connection with the Work and/or filing of any stop notice or mechanic's lien claims.
 - D. Any claims, allegations, penalties, assessments, or liabilities to the extent caused by the Contractor's failure or the failure of any subcontractor of any tier, to fully comply with the DIR registration requirements under Labor Code section 1725.5 at all times during the performance of any Work on the Project and shall reimburse the District for any penalties assessed against the District arising from any failure by the Contractor or any subcontractor of any tier from complying with Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1. Nothing in this paragraph, however, shall require the

Contractor or any subcontractor to be liable to the District or indemnify the District for any penalties caused by the District in accordance with Labor Code section 1773.3 (g).

Contractor, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the Indemnitees, on account of or founded upon any cause, damage, or injury identified in this section and shall pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against the District, its officers, agents or employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof. The Contractor's obligations hereunder shall survive termination of the Contract and/or completion of the Work, and are incorporated into and made a part of the obligations of the Surety issuing the Bonds.

12. District Right to Terminate.

- 12.1 <u>Termination for Cause</u>. Termination for Cause: The District may terminate the Contractor and/or this Contract for the following reasons: persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; persistently or repeatedly is absent, without excuse, from the job site; fails to make payment to subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen, etc.; persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of a public authority having jurisdiction; fails to provide a schedule or fails or refuses to update schedules required under the Contract; falls behind on the Project and refuses or fails to undertake a recovery schedule; if the Contractor has been debarred from performing work; becomes bankrupt or insolvent, including the filing of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; Contractor or any of its subcontractors are not properly registered with DIR at all times; or is otherwise is in substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. When any of the above reasons exist, the District may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the District and after giving the Contractor written notice of five (5) days, terminate the Contractor and/or this Contract.
- 12.2 Payments Withheld. If the District terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Project is complete. All costs associated with the termination and completion of the Project shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 12.3 Payments upon Completion. If the unpaid balance of the Total Contract Price exceeds costs of completing the Project, including compensation for professional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the District. The amount to be paid to the Contractor, or District, as the case may be, shall be certified upon application. This payment obligation shall survive completion of the Contract.

Termination for Convenience. District may terminate the Contract upon five (5) days written notice to the Contractor and use any reasonable method the District deems expedient to complete the Project, including contracting with replacement contractor or contractors, if it is found that reasons beyond the control of either the District or Contractor make it impossible or against the District's interest to complete the Project. In such a case, the Contractor shall have no claims against the District except for: (1) the actual cost for approved labor, materials, and services performed in accordance with the Contract Documents which have not otherwise been previously paid for and which are supported and documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, or otherwise; and (2) profit and overhead of ten percent (10%) of the approved costs in item (1); and (3) termination cost of five percent (5%) of the approved costs in item (1). Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if the District (in its sole and absolute discretion) decides to takeover completion of the Project, the Contractor agrees to immediately assign all subcontracts to the District which the District has chosen to accept.

13. Warranty.

- 13.1 Warranty and Guarantee Obligations. The Contractor warrants to the District that: (i) all materials and equipment furnished under the Contract Documents are new, of good quality and of the most suitable grade and quality for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents; and (ii) all Work and workmanship is of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformity with the requirements of the Contract Documents. If within two (2) years, or such other period set forth in the Contract Documents, any of the Work or workmanship is found defective or not in compliance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall upon the District's demand, promptly take all measures necessary to correct, repair or replace such Work or workmanship. If the Contractor fails to do so, the District may take necessary action to correct, replace or replace such Work or workmanship at the cost and expense of the Contractor.
- 13.2 <u>Guarantee</u>. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall execute and deliver to the District the form of Guarantee included within the Contract Documents. The Contractor's execution and delivery of the form of Guarantee is an express condition precedent to any obligation of the District to disburse the Final Payment to the Contractor.
- 13.3 <u>Survival of Warranties</u>. The Contractor' warranty and guaranty obligations hereunder shall survive the Contractor's completion of Work under the Contract Documents, the District's Final Acceptance or the termination of the Contract.
- 14. Tests/Inspections of the Work. The Work shall be subject to tests/inspections as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be liable for all costs, fees or expenses of tests/inspections which result from the Work not being ready for tests/inspections or the failure of the Work to comply with the applicable test/inspection standards. If the Work is subject to the jurisdiction of the

Division of State Architect ("DSA"), all of the Work shall be subject to inspection/observation by the Project Inspector retained by the District under DSA regulations. If DSA or the Project Inspector deem any portion of the Work to not be in compliance with requirements of the Contract Documents, a material obligation of the Contractor is its prompt and complete repair, replacement or correction of such portion(s) of the Project so they comply with requirements of the Contract Documents. The Project Inspector shall have access at all times to the Work, whether in place or in progress; the Contractor shall provide such access without adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Time.

15. Miscellaneous.

- Disputes; Continuation of Work. Notwithstanding any claim, dispute or other disagreement between the District and the Contractor regarding performance under the Contract Documents, the scope of Work thereunder, or any other matter arising out of or related to, in any manner, the Contract Documents or the Work, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work in accordance with the District's written direction, pending any final determination or decision regarding any such claim, dispute or disagreement.
- 15.2 <u>Public Contract Code §9204 Claims Resolution Procedures</u>. Claims of the Contractor are subject to the non-binding dispute resolution procedures set forth in Public Contract Code §9204 ("Section 9204").
 - 15.2.1 <u>Contractor Claims</u>. Contractor Claims are subject to the Section 9204 Procedures provided, however, that the Section 9204 Procedures are expressly subject to the Contractor's prior full and timely compliance with requirements and procedures of the Contract Documents relating to submittal and resolution of Claims, change orders, disputes and other matters in controversy under the Contract Documents. By this reference, the Section 9204 Procedures are incorporated herein.
 - 15.2.2 Subcontractor Claims. Subcontractor Claims are subject to Section 9204 Procedures, as modified herein. The District's review of Subcontractor Claims is expressly subject to the Contractor's submittal of a duly completed and executed form of Contractor Certification of Subcontractor Claim certifying that the Contractor has thoroughly reviewed the Subcontractor Claim and based on the Contractor's review, certify that: (i) the Subcontractor Claim is made by the Subcontractor in good faith; (ii) the Subcontractor Claim is supported by reasonable documentation establishing entitlement to the relief requested and District liability therefor; and (iii) the Subcontractor Claim does not incorporate any request constituting a False Claim under applicable law, including the California False Claim Act (Government Code §12650 et seg.). The form of Contractor Certification of Subcontractor Claim is included in the Contract Documents.

- 15.2.3 <u>Contractor Compliance with Government Code Claims Procedures.</u> Disputed Claims and other matters in controversy asserted by the Contractor against the District are a "suit for money or damages" and subject to Government Code §§945.4, 945.6 and 946 ("Government Code Claims Process"). An express condition precedent to the Contractor's initiation of §20104.4 Dispute Resolution Procedures is the Contractor's compliance with the Government Code Clams Process.
- 15.2.4 <u>Disputed Claims</u>. Claims not resolved by the Section 9204 Procedures are subject to the binding dispute resolution procedures of Public Contract Code §20104.4 (Section 20104.4 Dispute Resolution Procedures).
- 15.2.5 Section 20104.4 Dispute Resolution
 Procedures, Claims Less Than \$375,000. Disputed
 Claims of \$375,000 or less shall be resolved in
 accordance with the civil action procedures
 established in Public Contract Code \$20104.4.
 Mediation conducted pursuant to Section 9204
 Procedures shall excuse any further obligation under
 Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been
 commenced.
- 15.3 Governing Law; Interpretation. This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. This Contract shall be interpreted as a whole and not in favor of the District or the Contractor.
- 15.4 <u>Successors</u>. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective successors-in-interest of the District and the Contractor. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Contractor shall not assign this Contract, any right or obligation hereunder or any portion thereof.
- 15.5 <u>Permits; Approvals</u>. Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall obtain and pay for all fees, permits or approvals necessary to complete the Work.
- 15.6 <u>Non-Discrimination</u>. The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall not discriminate against any active or prospective employee based upon race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, age, sexual preference or marital status. The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations prohibiting workplace discrimination and/or discriminatory employment practices.
- 15.7 <u>Days</u>. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all references to "days" shall be deemed references to calendar days.
- 15.8 <u>Severability</u>. If any term, condition or provision of this Contract is deemed invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such term, condition or provision shall be deemed severed herefrom, but all other terms, conditions and provisions hereof shall remain unaffected and in full force and effect.

- 15.9 Attorneys' Fees. Except as expressly provided for in the Contract Documents, or authorized by law, neither the District nor the Contractor shall recover from the other any attorneys' fees or other costs associated with or arising out of any legal, administrative or other proceedings filed or instituted in connection with or arising out of the Contract Documents, the performance of either the District or the Contractor thereunder, or enforcement hereof.
- 15.10 Provisions Required by the Laws Deemed Incorporated. Each and every provision of law and clause required by the Laws to be inserted in the Contract Documents is deemed to be incorporated herein and the Contract Documents shall be read and enforced as though such provision or clause are included herein, and if through mistake, or otherwise, any such provision or clause is not inserted or if not correctly inserted, then upon application of either party, the Contract Documents shall forthwith be physically amended to make such revision.
- 15.11 No Oral Modifications. The terms of the Contract shall be modified only by written instrument duly executed on behalf of the Contractor and District. Verbal or oral modifications to the Contract of terms thereof are not valid or enforceable.
- 15.12 Entire Agreement. The Contract Documents contain the entire agreement and understanding between the District and the Contractor concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations, proposed agreements or amendments, whether written or oral. No amendment or modification to any provision of the Contract Documents shall be effective or enforceable except by an agreement in writing executed by the District and the Contractor.

[END OF SECTION]

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The following supplements modify the General Terms and Conditions. Where a portion of the General Terms and Conditions is modified and or deleted by these Special Conditions, the unaltered portions of the General Conditions shall remain in effect.

1. SCOPE OF WORK

Included:

- Refer to Division 09 90 00 Painting—Technical Requirements and Drawings for Scope of Work.
- If required by the Lead/Asbestos Inspections: Hazardous Materials Report, remediate any conditions as needed prior to paint.

2. **CONTRACT TIME**

The Contractor's Baseline Schedule shall include the following Milestone Schedule

- Post Bid Document Phase Milestone #1 (Start Date: Not Later than 5/1/2024)
 - Notice of Intent to Award
 - District Award
 - Post-Bid Contract Submittals
 - Project Submittal
- Post Bid Document Phase Milestone #1 (Completion Date: Not Later than 5/21/24)
- Procurement/Mobilization Phase Milestone #2 (Start Date: Not Later than 5/22/2024)
 - Notice to Proceed
 - Project Submittal
 - o Procurement
 - Mobilization/initial layout
- Procurement/Mobilization Phase Milestone #2 (Completion Date: Not Later than 6/4/2024)
- Construction Work Phase Milestone #3 (Start Date: 6/5/2024)
 - All related scope of work.
- Construction Work Phase Milestone #3 (Completion Date: Not Later than 7/31/2024)
- Final Contract Close-Out Phase Milestone #5 (Start Date: Not Later than 8/1/2024)
 - Final Contract Close-Out
- Final Contract Close-Out Phase Milestone #5 (Completion Date: Not Later than 8/31/2024)

[END OF SECTION]

PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

THAT WHEREAS, the Center Unified School District (sometimes referred to hereinafter as "Obligee") has awarded to (hereinafter designated as the "Principal" or "Contractor"), an agreement for the work described as follows: (hereinafter referred to as the "Public Work or Project"); and
WHEREAS, said Contractor is required to furnish a bond in connection with said Contract, and
pursuant to California Civil Code section 9550;
NOW, THEREFORE, We,, the undersigned
Contractor, as Principal; and, a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of, and duly authorized to transact business under the
laws of the State of California, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Center Unified School District
and to any and all persons, companies, or corporations entitled by law to file stop notices under California
Civil Code section 9100, or any person, company, or corporation entitled to make a claim on this bond, in
the sum of, Dollars (\$), such sum
being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total amount payable by said Obligee under the
terms of said Contract, for which payment will and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if said Principal, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, or subcontractor, shall fail to pay any person or persons named in Civil Code section 9100; or fail to pay for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, used in, upon, for, or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code, with respect to work or labor thereon of any kind; or shall fail to deduct, withhold, and pay over to the Employment Development Department, any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over by Unemployment Insurance Code section 13020 with respect to work and labor thereon of any kind, then said Surety will pay for the same, in an amount not exceeding the amount herein above set forth, and in the event suit is brought upon this bond, also will pay such reasonable attorneys' fees as shall be fixed by the court, awarded and taxed as provided in California Civil Code section 9550 et seq.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any person named in Civil Code section 9100 giving such person or his/her assigns a right of action in any suit brought upon this bond.

It is further stipulated and agreed that the Surety of this bond shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of the bond by any change, extension of time for performance, addition, alteration or modification in, to, or of any contract, Plans, or specifications, or agreement pertaining or relating to any scheme or work of improvement herein above described; or pertaining or relating to the furnishing of labor, materials, or equipment therefor; nor by any change or modification of any terms of payment or extension of time for payment pertaining or relating to any scheme or work of improvement herein above described; nor by any rescission or attempted rescission of the contract, agreement or bond; nor by any conditions precedent or subsequent in the bond attempting to limit the right of recovery of claimants otherwise entitled to recover under any such contract or agreement or under the bond; nor by any fraud

practiced by any person other than the claimant seeking to recover on the bond; and that this bond be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of all persons for whose benefit such bond is given; and under no circumstances shall the Surety be released from liability to those for whose benefit such bond has been given, by reason of any breach of contract between the Obligee and the Contractor or on the part of any obligee named in such bond; that the sole condition of recovery shall be that the claimant is a person described in California Civil Code section 9100, and who has not been paid the full amount of his or her claim; and that the Surety does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, addition, alteration or modification herein mentioned.

ation or modifica	ation herein mentioned.
	rument has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above, 20
uu, o	
	PRINCIPAL/CONTRACTOR:
	Ву:
	SURETY:
	By:Attorney-in-Fact
zing them to wr project is financ	ist possess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance ite surety insurance defined in California Insurance Code section ced, in whole or in part, with federal, grant or loan funds, Surety's y Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended).
oond may be add	dressed to:
f Surety)	(Name and Address of agent or representative for service for service of process in California)
	
	Telephone:
	cuting bonds muzing them to wroper is finance on the Treasure ond may be added

A notary public or other office completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)	
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO)) ss.	
On	hoforo mo	norconally
		, personally
appeared	, who proved o	n the basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within ins	trument and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the sa	me in his/her/their authorized ca	pacity(ies) as the Attorney-in-Fact of
	(Surety) and acknowledged to r	ne that by his/her/their signature(s) on
		he person(s) executed the instrument.
I certify under PENALTY OF PER paragraph is true and correct.	RJURY under the laws of the State of	f California that the foregoing
WITNESS my hand and official	seal.	
	(SEAL)	
Notary Public in and for said S	tate	
Commission expires:		
NOTE: A copy of the power-of-hereto.	attorney to local representatives of t	the bonding company must be attached

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

"Obliggo") has awarded to	ed School District (sometimes referred to hereinafter as
Obligee / has awarded to	(hereinafter designated
	(hereinafter designated agreement for the work described as follows: ereinafter referred to as the "Public Work or Project"); and
·	the Contractor is more particularly set forth in that certain
	, (hereinafter referred to as
the "Contract"), which Contract is incorporated	herein by this reference; and
a bond both for the performance and guaranty	
NOW, THEREFORE, we,	, the undersigned , a corporation organized and existing
Contractor as Principal and	a cornoration organized and existing
Contractor, as Principal, and	, a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of	, and duly authorized to transact business under the
under the laws of the State of	, a corporation organized and existing , and duly authorized to transact business under the d and firmly bound unto the Center Unified School District
under the laws of the State oflaws of the State of California, as Surety, are hel	, and duly authorized to transact business under the

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, if the bounded Contractor, his or her heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in said Contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or her part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their intent and meaning; and shall faithfully fulfill guarantees of all materials and workmanship; and indemnify, defend and save harmless the Obligee, its officers and agents, as stipulated in said Contract, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of this bond (either by total exoneration or pro tanto) by any change, extension of time, alteration in or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed there under or the specifications accompanying the same, nor by any change or modification to any terms of payment or extension of time for any payment pertaining or relating to any scheme of work of improvement under the contract. Surety also stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of this bond (either by total exoneration or pro tanto) by any overpayment or underpayment by the Obligee that is based upon estimates approved by the Architect. The Surety stipulates and agrees that none of the aforementioned changes, modifications, alterations, additions, extension of time or actions shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such changes, modifications, alterations, additions or extension of time to the terms of the

contract, or to the work, or the specifications as well notice of any other actions that result in the foregoing.

Whenever Principal shall be, and is declared by the Obligee to be, in default under the Contract, the Surety shall promptly either remedy the default, or shall promptly take over and complete the Contract through its agents or independent contractors, subject to acceptance and approval of such agents or independent contractors by Obligee as hereinafter set forth, in accordance with its terms and conditions and to pay and perform all obligations of Principal under the Contract, including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of liquidated damages; or, at Obligee's sole discretion and election, Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by Obligee of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the Obligee and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or succession of defaults under the contract or contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the "balance of the Contract price" (as hereinafter defined), and to pay and perform all obligations of Principal under the Contract, including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of liquidated damages. The term "balance of the Contract price," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable to Principal by the Obligee under the Contract and any modifications thereto, less the amount previously paid by the Obligee to the Principal, less any withholdings by the Obligee allowed under the Contract. Obligee shall not be required or obligated to accept a tender of a completion contractor from the Surety.

Surety expressly agrees that the Obligee may reject any agent or contractor which may be proposed by Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Principal. Unless otherwise agreed by Obligee, in its sole discretion, Surety shall not utilize Principal in completing the Contract nor shall Surety accept a bid from Principal for completion of the work in the event of default by the Principal.

No final settlement between the Obligee and the Contractor shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

The Surety shall remain responsible and liable for all patent and latent defects that arise out of or relate to the Contractor's failure and/or inability to properly complete the Public Work as required by the Contract and the Contract Documents. The obligation of the Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of the Contractor remains.

Contractor and Surety agree that if the Obligee is required to engage the services of an attorney in connection with enforcement of the bond, Contractor and Surety shall pay Obligee's reasonable attorneys' fees incurred, with or without suit, in addition to the above sum.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs incurred by the Obligee in such suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees to be fixed by the Court.

[Signature on following page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereun, 20	to set our hands and seals this day of
	PRINCIPAL/CONTRACTOR:
	By:
	SURETY:
	Ву:
	Attorney-in-Fact
The rate of premium on this bond is The total amount of premium charged: \$ corporate surety).	per thousand. (This must be filled in by a
Commissioner authorizing them to write suret 105, and if the work or project is financed, in w	ess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance by insurance defined in California Insurance Code section whole or in part, with federal, grant or loan funds, Surety's ment's most current list (Circular 570 as amended).
Any claims under this bond may be addressed t	, ,
(Name and Address of Surety)	(Name and Address of agent or representative for service for service of process in California)
Telephone:	Telephone:

A notary public or other office completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)		
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO)) SS.		
On	_, before me,		, personally
appeared	٠, ١	who proved on the bas	is of satisfactory evidence to
be the person(s) whose name(s) is,	are subscribed to	the within instrument a	and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the same	in his/her/their a	authorized capacity(ies) as the Attorney-in-Fact of
	(Surety) and acknowledge	owledged to me that by	his/her/their signature(s) on
the instrument the person(s), or th	e entity upon beh	alf of which the person	(s) executed the instrument.
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJUR is true and correct.	Y under the laws o	f the State of California	that the foregoing paragraph
WITNESS my hand and official seal			
	·	SEAL)	
Notary Public in and for said State	9		
Commission expires:			
NOTE: A copy of the power-of-attohereto.	rney to local repre	sentatives of the bondi	ng company must be attached

CERTIFICATE OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

l,		the	of
,	(Name)		(Title)
	(Contrac	ctor Name)	, declare state and certify that:
"Every		at California Labor Code §3700(a) and (b) provoyer except the state shall secure the paymers:	
	(a)	By being insured against liability to pay cauthorized to write compensation insurance	-
	(b)	By securing from the Director of Industrial Reeither as an individual employer, or one employer upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the self-insure and to pay any compensation that	elations a certificate of consent to self-insure ployer in a group of employers, which may be ne Director of Industrial Relations of ability to
agains provis	t liabil	hat the provisions of California Labor Code § ty for workers' compensation or to undert that code, and I will comply with such provisi	take self-insurance in accordance with the
		ed to execute this Certificate of Workers' Compartactor.	pensation Insurance on behalf of the above-
Dated	:		-
Ву:			_
	(Signatur	e of Bidder's Authorized Officer or Representative)	
	(Name Pr	inted or Typed)	-
Title:			

	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION				
l, _	, am the of of (Contractor Name)				
I de	clare, state and certify to all of the following:				
1.	I am aware of the provisions and requirements of California Government Code §§8350 et seq., the Drug Fre Workplace Act of 1990.				
2.	I am authorized to certify, and do certify, on behalf of Contractor that a drug free workplace will be provide by Contractor by doing all of the following:				
3.	Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in Contractor's workplace and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for violation of the prohibition.				
4.	Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following: (i) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (ii) Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; (ii) the availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee-assistance programs; and (iii) the penalties that may be impose upon employees for drug abuse violations.				
5.	Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the Contract be given a copy of the statemer required above, and that as a condition of employment by Contractor in connection with the Work of the Contract, the employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.				
6.	. Contractor agrees to fulfill and discharge all of Contractor's obligations under the terms and requirement California Government Code §8355 by, inter alia, publishing a statement notifying employees concerning the prohibition of any controlled substance in the workplace, (ii) establishing a drug-free awareness progr and (iii) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the Work of the Contract be given a cof the statement required by California Government Code §8355(a) and requiring that the employee agree abide by the terms of that statement.				
7.	Contractor and I understand that if the District determines that Contractor has either: (i) made a false certification herein, or (ii) violated this certification by failing to carry out and to implement the requirement of California Government Code §§8355, the Contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension payments, or both. Contractor and I further understand that, should Contractor violate the terms of the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1990, Contractor may be subject to debarment in accordance with the provisions California Government Code §§8350, et seq.				
8.	Contractor and I acknowledge that Contractor and I are aware of the provisions of California Government Cod §§8350, et seq. and hereby certify that Contractor and I will adhere to, fulfill, satisfy and discharge all provision of and obligations under the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.				
	eclare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that all of the foregoing is true an				
COI	rect. Executed this day of 20 at (City and State)				
Ву					
	(Signature of Bidder's Authorized Officer or Representative)				
	(Typed or Printed Name)				

Title:

GUARANTEE

Project: Dudley Elementary School - Paint - Portables Bid No. 24-04

The Contractor hereby warrants and guarantees to the District that all work, materials, equipment and workmanship provided, furnished or installed by or on behalf of Contractor in connection with the above referenced Project (the "Work") have been provided, furnished and installed in strict conformity with the Contract Documents for the Work, including without limitation, the Drawings and the Specifications. Contractor further warrants and guarantees that all work, materials, equipment and workmanship as provided, furnished and/or installed are fit for use as specified and fulfill all applicable requirements of the Contract Documents including without limitation, the Drawings and the Specifications. Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, repair, correct and/or replace any or all of the work, materials, equipment and/or workmanship of the Work, together with any other items which may be affected by any such repairs, corrections or replacement, that may be unfit for use as specified or defective within a period of one (2) years from the date of the District's Final Acceptance of the Work, ordinary wear and tear and unusual abuse or neglect excepted.

In the event of the Contractor's failure and/or refusal to comply with the provisions of this Guarantee, within the period of time set forth in the Contract Documents after the District's issuance of the Notice to the Contractor of any defect(s) in the Work, materials, equipment or workmanship, Contractor authorizes the District, without further notice to Contractor, to repair, correct and/or replace any such defective item at the expense of the Contractor. The Contractor shall reimburse the District for all costs, expenses or fees incurred by the District in providing or performing such repairs, corrections or replacements within ten (10) days of the District's presentation of a demand to the Contractor for the same.

The provisions of this Guarantee and the provisions of the Contract Documents for the Work relating to the Contractor's Guarantee(s) and warranty(ies) relating to the Work shall be binding upon the Contractor's Performance Bond Surety and all successors or assigns of Contractor and/or Contractor's Performance Bond Surety.

The provisions of this Guarantee are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any provisions of the Contract Documents for the Work relating to the Contractor's guarantee(s) and warranty(ies) or any guarantee(s) or warranty(ies) provided by any material supplier or manufacturer of any equipment, materials or other items forming a part of, or incorporated into the Work, or any other guarantee or warranty obligation of the Contractor, prescribed, implied or imposed by law.

The undersigned individual executing this Guarantee on behalf of Contractor warrants and represents that he/she is duly authorized to execute this Guarantee on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor to each and every provision hereof.

Contractor
Contractor Name)
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Employee, Officer Or Representative)
Printed Name and Title)
Date)

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

						certifie	s that	it h	as p	erforme	d one	of	the	following:
[Na	me of C	ontracto	r/consu	tant]					·					_
	service specif	round c es to the led in Pe juired b	checks, e Cente enal Coo y Educa	through r Joint Un, and de section	the Canified Solution that in that in the section the	aliforni School I none h 2.7(c) a on 451	ia Depa District, nave bee and 667 25.1, at	rtment pursua en con .5(c), ro tached	of John to victed especial here	ustice, of the conder of ser tively. to as At	of all e tract/p ious or tachme	emplo urcha viole	oyees ase or ent fe	criminal providing der dated lonies, as
					J		OR			·				
	Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor will ensure the safety of pupils by one or more of the following methods:										[:] pupils by			
		1.	The in	stallation	of a p	hysical	l barrier	at the	work	site to I	imit coı	ntact	with _l	oupils.
	2. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not been convicted of a vioor serious felony.													
and co		are und	er pena	lty of per	rjury u	nder tl	he laws	of the	Unite	ed State	s that t	:he fo	regoi	ng is true
Date_			, 20	_										
							[Name o	of Cont	racto	r]				
							By its:_							_

ATTACHMENT A:

(INSERT NAMES OF EMPLOYEES WHO MAY COME IN CONTACT WITH PUPILS)

ATTACHMENT 1 - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS & DRAWINGS

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION	DESCRIPTION
01 21 00	Cash Allowances
01 31 19	Project Meetings & Procedures
01 35 76	Alteration Project Procedures
01 45 00	Quality Control
01 50 00	Temporary Facilities and Controls
01 73 29	Cutting and Patching
01 74 23	Final Cleaning
09 90 00	Exterior Paints and Coatings
<u>EXHIBIT</u>	Lead/Asbestos Inspections: Hazardous Materials Report (PENDING)
<u>DRAWING</u>	Dudley ES Paint Drawing - Portables

SECTION 01 21 00

CASH ALLOWANCES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SUMMARY

A. To provide a budget to cover scope of work not precisely determined by the Contract Documents prior to bidding, allow within the proposed Contract Sum the amounts described in this Section.

B. Related work:

- Documents affecting work of this Section include, but are not necessarily limited to, Bidding and Contract Requirements, General Requirements and related Technical Requirements.
- 2. Other provisions concerning Cash Allowances are stated in General Conditions.
- 3. Other provisions concerning Cash Allowances also may be stated in other Sections of the Project Manual.

1.02 SPECIFIC CASH ALLOWANCES

BID PACKAGE #24-04 Project

A. Dudley Elementary School Painting Allowance: District to provide within the final Contract Price the amount of \$35,000 for unforeseen conditions to be used at the Owner's discretion. This allowance will be expended under a "time and material" basis using current prevailing wage rates, as directed by the Architect and Owner's Representative. All unused portions of the allowance will be deducted from the contract through a change order.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS Not Used.

PART 3 – EXECUTION Not Used.

SECTION 01 31 19

PROJECT MEETING & PROCEDURES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Owner's Representative will schedule and administer a preconstruction meeting, regular progress meetings, and specially called meetings throughout progress of the Work, and will:
 - 1. Prepare agenda for meetings.
 - 2. Make physical arrangements for meetings.
 - 3. Preside at meetings.
 - 4. Record the minutes; include significant proceedings and decisions.
 - 5. Reproduce and distribute copies of minutes after each meeting to participants in the meeting and to parties affected by decisions made at meeting.
- B. Representatives of Contractor, subcontractors and suppliers attending meetings shall be experienced supervisory staff with written authorization to act on behalf of the entity each represents.

1.02 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING

- A. Timing: Prior to start of construction.
- B. Attendance: Architect and consultants as appropriate, District's representative, Owner's Representative, Contractors as requested.
- Purpose: Discuss and familiarize Contractors with construction administrative procedures to be used on Project.

1.03 PROGRESS MEETINGS

- A. Timing: Frequency, day and time to be determined by Owner's Representative, Architect and District.
- B. Attendance: Owner's Representative and each contractor on site. Owner's Representative, Architect, consultants and subcontractors when required.
- C. Purpose: The purpose of these meetings is to provide a formal and regular forum for the District, Owner's Representative, Architect and the Contractors to present questions, problems or issues that need to be addressed. It will also provide an opportunity to review the progress on previous issues and action items along with submittal and schedule review.
- D. Each Contractor scheduled to commence Work within the following week will attend the current week's meeting to coordinate Work with other contractors already on site.

1.04 SPECIALLY CALLED MEETINGS

A. The Owner's Representative may call a special meeting at any time during the course of the Project. Special Project meetings shall include representatives of the Project as requested in order to discuss problems and/or solutions that are common to the Project.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS Not Used.

PART 3 – EXECUTION Not Used.

SECTION 01 35 76

ALTERATION PROJECT PROCEDURES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Products and installation for patching and extending work.
- B. Transition and adjustments.
- C. Repair of damaged surfaces, finishes, and cleaning.
- D. Salvage materials.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Section 01 73 29: Cutting and Patching.

1.03 ALTERATIONS, CUTTING AND PROTECTION

- A. Assign the work of moving, removal, cutting and patching, to trades qualified to perform the work in manner to cause least damage to each type of work, and provide means of returning surfaces to appearance of new work.
- B. Perform cutting and removal work to remove minimum necessary, and in a manner to avoid damage to adjacent work.
 - 1. Cut finish surfaces such as concrete, masonry, drywall, plaster or metals, by methods to terminate surfaces in a straight line at a natural point of division, or where indicated.
- C. Cutting, boring, saw cutting, notching or drilling through the new or existing structural elements to be done only when specifically detailed on drawings or approved by Architect, Structural Engineer and DSA Representative.
- D. Protect existing finishes, equipment, and adjacent work, which is scheduled to remain, from damage.
 - 1. Protect existing and new' work from extremes of temperature.
 - a. Maintain existing Interior work above 60 degrees F.
 - b. Provide heat and humidity control as needed to prevent damage to remaining existing work and to new work.
- E. Provide temporary enclosures to separate work areas from existing building and from areas occupied by District.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

2.01 PRODUCTS FOR PATCHING AND EXTENDING WORK

- A. New Materials. As specified in product Sections; match new materials to Work.
- 1. Provide same products or types of construction as that in existing structure, as needed to Center Joint Unified School District Dudley ES Paint Portable Buildings

- patch, extend or match existing work.
- 2. Presence of a product, finish, or type of construction, requires that patching, extending or matching shall be performed consistent to, or better than, existing standards of quality.
- B. Type and Quality of Existing Products: Determine by Inspection and testing existing products where necessary, referring to existing Work as a standard.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that demolition is complete, and areas are ready for installation of new Work.
- B. Beginning of restoration Work means acceptance of existing conditions.

3.02 PREPARATION

- Cut, move, or remove items as necessary for access to alterations and/or renovation Work. Replace and restore at completion. The full extent of cutting and patching is not shown nor specified. The Contractor shall perform all cutting and patching as required.
- D. Remove unsuitable material not marked for salvage, such as rotted wood, corroded metals, and deteriorated masonry and concrete. Replace materials as specified for finished Work.
- E. Remove debris and abandoned items from area and from concealed spaces.
- F. Prepare surface and remove surface finishes to provide for proper installation of new work and finishes.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Coordinate work of alterations and renovations to expedite completion and to accommodate District occupancy. Patch and extend existing work using skilled mechanics that are capable of matching existing quality of workmanship. Quality of patched or extended work shall be not less than that Specified for new work.
- B. Room Finishes. Complete in all respects consistent with the Contract Documents.
- C. Remove, cut, and patch Work in a manner to minimize damage and to provide a means of restoring Products and finishes to specified condition.
- D. Install Products as specified In Individual Sections.

3.04 TRANSITIONS

- A. Where new Work abuts or aligns with existing, perform a smooth and even transition.
- Patch Work to match existing adjacent Work in texture and appearance, without breaks, steps or bulkheads.
- C. When finished surfaces are cut so that a smooth transition with new work is not possible, terminate existing surface along a straight line at a natural line of division and make recommendation to Architect.

3.05 ADJUSTMENTS

- A. Where change of plane of 1/4 inch or more occurs, submit recommendation for providing a smooth transition.
- B. Where extreme change of plane of two inches or more occurs, request Instructions from Architect as to method of making transition.
- C. Trim existing doors as necessary to clear new threshold Installation. Refinish trim as required.
- D. Fit work at penetrations of surfaces as shown on drawings.

3.06 SALVAGED MATERIALS

- A. Salvaged Materials from existing facilities, which are specified in the Special Provisions or tagged in the field prior to the pre-bid walk-through to be salvaged, shall remain the property of the District. The Contractor shall include the removal, disassembly, preparation, marking, bundling, packaging, tagging, hauling, and stockpiling of salvaged materials or facilities to the location specified in the Special Provisions, or as directed by the District's Representative. Materials include parts, articles, and equipment of assembled facilities. Salvaging does not include the preparation of existing material that is to be reused in the work.
- B. When only specific materials from the facility are designated to be salvaged, the remaining materials from that facility shall be removed and disposed of as provided for elsewhere in the Contract Documents. Materials to be salvaged shall not be removed until their use in the existing facility is no longer required, as determined by the District's Representative.
- C. When practicable, salvaged materials shall be hauled directly to the location specified in the Special Provisions and stockpiled; however, salvaged materials may be temporarily stored at a location selected by the Contractor and approved by the District's Representative and later hauled to and stockpiled at their final location. Materials which are lost before stockpiling at their final location shall either be replaced by the Contractor, at the Contractor's expense, or, at the discretion of the District's Representative, the estimated cost of replacement may be deducted from any moneys due or to become due to the Contractor.
- D. Materials designated to be salvaged that are damaged, as determined by the District's Representative, shall be segregated from undamaged material. After review of the damaged materials by the District's Representative, all damaged materials that are rejected by the District's Representative shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be disposed of as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- E. Materials to be salvaged that are damaged as a result of the Contractor's operations shall be repaired by the Contractor, at the Contractor's expense, to the satisfaction of the District's Representative. Materials that are damaged beyond repair as a result of the Contractor's operations shall be disposed of as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents and replaced at the Contractor's expense; or, at the discretion of the District's Representative, the estimated cost of replacement may be deducted from any moneys due or to become due to the Contractor.
- F. Replacements for lost or damaged materials shall be of the same kind and of the same or better quality and condition as the lost or damaged materials were prior to their removal. Replacement materials should also be of the same size, color, weight, etc. of the original materials. Matching or exceeding quality and condition alone may not permit the reuse of material.

3.07 REPAIR OF DAMAGED SURFACES

- A. Patch or replace portions of existing surfaces, which are damaged, lifted, discolored, or showing other imperfections.
- B. Repair substrate prior to patching finish.

3.08 FINISHES

- A. Finish surfaces as specified in Individual Product Sections.
- B. Finish patches to produce uniform finish and texture over entire area. When finish cannot be matched, refinish entire surface to nearest Intersections.

3.09 CLEANING

A. Clean adjacent District occupied areas of work soiled by work of this Contract (See General Conditions).

SECTION 01 45 00

QUALITY CONTROL

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Quality assurance and control of installation.
- B. References.
- C. Field samples.
- D. Mock-up.
- E. Inspection and testing laboratory services.
- F. Manufacturers' field services and reports.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. General Conditions Article 3: The Contractor
- B. Technical Specifications

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL OF INSTALLATION

- A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, Products, services, site conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
- B. Comply fully with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence.
- C. Should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding.
- D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except when more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher standards or more precise workmanship.
- E. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.
- F. Secure Products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion or disfigurement.
- G. Contractors Line of Authority: Contractor shall provide one person who shall be both knowledgeable and responsible for all work to be performed on this project at all times during normal work hours. In Contractors absence, Contractors appointed representative shall be responsible for all directions given him and said directions shall be binding as if given to the Contractor. Contractor's representative shall be responsible to coordinate all work to be performed.
- H. Shop and fieldwork shall be performed by mechanics skilled and experienced in the fabrication and installation of the work involved. All work on this project shall be done in accordance with the best practices of the various trades involved and in accordance with the drawings, approved shop

drawings and these specifications.

- I. All work shall be erected and installed plumb, level, square and true and in proper alignment and relationship to the work of other trades. All finished work shall be free from defects. The Architect reserves the right to reject any materials and workmanship which are not considered to be up to the highest standards of the various trades involved. Such Inferior material or workmanship shall be replaced at no additional cost to the Owner.
- J. All work shall be installed by a knowledgeable contractor and defined "certified to install" by the specified materials manufacturers. The specifications and recommendations of the manufacturer whose materials are used shall be strictly adhered to during the application or installation of materials.
- K. Any additional work beyond that specified or illustrated, or any modification thereto, that is necessary for the furnishing of guarantee shall be provided by the Contractor without additional cost to the District.

1.04 REFERENCES

- A. Conform to reference standards by date of issue current on date of the Contract Documents.
- B. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding.
- C. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be altered from the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any reference document.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for being current and knowledgeable of all building codes involved for all trades under his direction.
- E. Provide all work and materials in full accordance with the California Building Standards Code (CBC), the State Fire Marshal, Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, the National Electric Code, the Uniform Building Code, Uniform Mechanical Code, Uniform Plumbing Code, and any other applicable laws or regulations. Nothing in these plans or specifications is to be construed to permit work not conforming to these Codes.
- F. Furnish without extra charge any additional material and labor required to comply with these Rules and Regulations.

1.05 FIELD SAMPLES

- A. Install field samples at the site as required by individual specifications Sections for review.
- B. Acceptable samples represent a quality level for the Work.
- C. Where field sample is specified in Individual Sections to be removed, clear area after field sample has been accepted by Architect.

1.06 MOCK-UP

- A. Assemble and erect specified items, with specified attachment and anchorage devices, flashings, seals, and finishes.
- B. Where mock-up is specified in Individual Sections to be removed, clear area after mock-up has been accepted by Architect.

1.07 INSPECTION AND TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

A. Inspection and Testing labs shall be directly employed by the District.

1.08 MANUFACTURERS FIELD SERVICES AND REPORTS

- A. Submit qualifications of observer to Architect 30 days in advance of required observations.
- B. When specified in individual specification Sections, require material or Product suppliers or manufacturers to provide qualified staff personnel to observe site conditions, conditions of surfaces and installation, quality of workmanship, start-up of equipment, test, adjust, and balance of equipment as applicable, and to initiate instructions when necessary.
- C. Individuals to report observations and site decisions or instructions given to applicators or installers that are supplemental or contrary to manufacturers' written instructions.
- D. Submit report in duplicate within 30 days of observation to Architect for review.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS Not Used.

PART 3 – EXECUTION Not Used.

SECTION 01 50 00

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. Temporary Facilities and controls required for this Work include, but are not necessarily limited to:
 - 1. Parking and storage areas.
 - 2. Site fencing and security.
 - 3. Sanitary facilities.
 - 4. Final and course of construction cleanup and removal of debris.

1.02 TEMPORARY UTILITIES

A. Contractor to provide if needed.

1.03 FIELD OFFICE/STORAGE CONTAINERS

A. Contractor to provide if needed.

1.04 PARKING OF VEHICLES

A. Each Contractor shall assume <u>all</u> responsibility for job site vehicle parking of his and his subcontractor's vehicles. Locations of parking shall be as directed by the Owner's Representative.

1.05 STORAGE AND LAYDOWN AREAS

A. The Owner's Representative will coordinate use of available laydown areas among various contractors. Only areas designated by Owner's Representative can be used by Contractors. Each contractor is responsible for providing his own fenced storage facilities (trailers or cargo containers.)

1.06 TEMPORARY SITE FENCING AND SECURITY

A. Each Contractor shall provide and maintain temporary fencing surrounding the buildings and/or rooms under construction, and staging areas. Set-up/relocation of temporary fencing shall be included for each phase of work as shown on the Preliminary Construction Schedule. Contractor is responsible for the security of all equipment, material, and completed construction items. Contractor is also responsible for securing any breeches to existing security system/building caused by his Work. Temporary measures may include watchman, temporary doors, temporary alarm, etc.

1.07 SANITARY FACILITIES

A. Each Contractor shall provide sanitary toilet facilities for use of all Workers employed on Project, in accordance with State and Local health departments. Use of District toilet facilities will not be allowed.

1.08 CLEANUP AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS

A. Each Contractor shall assume all responsibility for cleanup and removal of debris created by his Scope of Work on a daily basis. No community dumpsters will be provided. In the event unidentifiable job site clutter or debris becomes a problem, at Owner's Representatives request, each contractor shall provide sufficient labor to be directed by Owner's Representatives personnel in a group cleanup effort. If a Contractor's clean-up is found to be deficient, the District may backcharge the Contractor for clean-up and/or withhold progress payments as determined appropriate by the District in accordance with General Conditions - Article 2: Owner, Section 2.2 Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work Due to Partial Default in a Specific Segregated Area of Work (Two (2) Business Day Notice to Cure and Correct).

1.09 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPMENT AND PROTECTION

A. Contractor shall provide, maintain and remove upon completion of Work, all temporary rigging, scaffolding, hoisting equipment, rubbish chutes, ladders, barricades, lights and all other protective structures or devices necessary for safety of Workers and public property as required to complete the Bid Package Scope of Work.

1. Safety:

The contractor is responsible for the complete safety of district personnel, students, and the general public at all times.

2. Walkways and barricades:

If Contractor's portion of Work interferes with pedestrian traffic, provide pedestrian walkway protection conforming to City standards and CAL OSHA requirements.

3. Access:

The contractor is responsible to maintain access to the buildings at all times. Temporary covered walkways and/or barricades may be required.

4. Protection:

Each Contractor must protect all Workers and equipment from power lines by maintaining safe distances and by providing protective devices where and as required by Industrial Safety Commission and CAL-OSHA.

5. <u>Temporary construction and equipment:</u>

All temporary construction and equipment shall conform to all regulations, ordinances, laws and other requirements of State and any other authorities having jurisdiction (including insurance companies), with regards to safety precautions, operations and fire hazards.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS Not Used.

<u>PART 3 – EXECUTION</u> Not Used.

SECTION 01 73 29

CUTTING AND PATCHING

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Execute cutting, fitting or patching of Work, required to:
 - 1. Make parts fit properly.
 - 2. Uncover Work to provide for installation of ill-timed Work.
 - 3. Remove and replace Work not conforming to requirements of Contract Documents.
 - 4. Remove and replace defective Work.
 - 5. Remove samples of installed Work as specified for testing.
 - 6. Remove existing materials (demolition) required prior to installation of specified Work.
 - 7. Uncover Work to provide for Architect's observation of covered Work.
- B. Do not endanger structural integrity of any Work by cutting or altering any part of it.
- C. The Contractors with structural responsibility within their scope of Work shall solely execute structural cutting and patching required for this Project, according to DSA Approved Drawings.
- D. Minor cutting and patching of finishes and/or trim will be performed by the Contractor where required for the execution of his Work. Locations of all cutting and patching (core boring, etc.) shall be reviewed and approved by the Architect, Structural Engineer and DSA Representative prior to the start of Work.
- E. Cutting, boring, saw cutting, notching or drilling through the new or existing structural elements to be done only when specifically detailed on drawings or approved by Architect, Structural Engineer and DSA Representative.
- F. The Contractor shall make the field measurements necessary for his Work and be responsible for its accuracy. Also, should any structural difficulties prevent a Contractor from installing his material properly, the District's Representative and Architect shall be notified in writing within 24 hours. Cutting into the walls, ceilings and floors, if necessary, shall be carefully and neatly performed and then be repaired as specified in the Contract Documents. The Architect shall be consulted prior to the start of Work in all cases where cutting into a structural portion of the building is either desirable or necessary so that satisfactory reinforcement may be provided.
- G. Patching of all exposed architectural finishes shall be performed under the supervision of the Inspector. Cutting and patching of existing architectural finishes shall be minimized to the extent possible through careful routing and placement of new Work. The Architect or Inspector shall have the authority to reject substandard or unacceptable patching.
- H. Patching of openings that are cut in any fire rated walls or membranes shall be sealed tightly using approved materials only. Verify that fire rating envelopes are maintained and inspections provided prior to concealing Work. Cutting and patching, if required by Agencies to verify adequacy of protection after concealment, shall be performed at no cost to the District.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. General Conditions.
- B. Section 01 50 00: Temporary Facilities and Controls.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Prior to cutting which affects structural safety of Project, submit written notice to Architect requesting consent to proceed with cutting. See items "C" and "F", Section 1.01.
- B. Should conditions of Work or schedule require change of materials or methods, submit written recommendation to Architect, within 48 hours, including:
 - 1. Conditions requiring change.
 - 2. Recommendations for alternative materials or methods.
 - 3. Submittals as required for substitutions.
 - Quotations of charges or credits.
- C. Submit 48-hour advance written notice to Architect (with a copy to the District's Representative) designating the time Work will be uncovered.
- D. Submit all materials to be used in cutting and patching in accordance with Special Conditions...

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Primary Products: Materials for replacement of Work removed are to comply with Technical Specifications and are required to match original installation.
- B. Product Substitution: For any proposed change in materials, submit request for substitution in accordance with Special Conditions.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Examine existing conditions prior to commencing Work, including elements subject to movement or damage during cutting and patching.
- B. After uncovering existing Work, examine conditions affecting installation of new products and performance of Work.
- Beginning of cutting or patching operations means acceptance of existing conditions.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Provide means of shoring, bracing and temporary supports as required to maintain structural integrity of the Work.
- B. Provide devices, enclosures and methods to protect adjacent surfaces and areas of the property from damage, dust or disruption.

- C. Provide protection from the elements for areas, which may be exposed during cutting or patching.
- D. Maintain excavations free of water.

3.03 CUTTING

- A. Execute cutting, fitting and adjustment of products to permit finished installation to comply with specified tolerances and finishes.
- B. Perform cutting and demolition by methods, which will prevent damage to other Work, and will provide proper surfaces to receive installation of repairs and new Work.
- C. Uncover Work to install improperly sequenced Work.
- D. Remove and replace defective, rejected or non-conforming Work.
- E. Remove samples of installed Work for testing when requested.
- F. Provide openings in the Work for penetration of Mechanical and Electrical Work.
- G. Employ only experienced installers to perform cutting for weather exposed, moisture resistant and sight-exposed surfaces.
- H. Cut concrete, tile plaster and other rigid materials using masonry/concrete saws and core drills. Pneumatic tools are not allowed without prior approval.

3.04 PATCHING

- A. Execute patching to match adjacent Work.
- B. Fit products together to integrate seamlessly with adjacent Work.
- C. Execute patching by methods to avoid damage to adjacent Work, and which will provide appropriate surfaces to receive finishing Work.
- D. Employ only experienced installers to perform patching for weather exposed, moisture resistant and sight-exposed surfaces.
- E. Restore Work with new products in accordance with requirements of the Contract Documents.
- F. At penetrations of fire rated walls, partitions, ceiling or floor construction, completely seal voids with approved fire rated material in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions and applicable Codes.
- G. Fit Work to pipes, sleeves, ducts, conduits and other penetrations through affected surfaces neatly and leave in finished condition.
- H. All patched surfaces are to match adjacent finishes in all respects: Type, texture, thickness and color. For continuous surfaces, refinish to nearest intersection or natural break. For an assembly, refinish entire unit or area.

SECTION 01 74 23

FINAL CLEANING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SUMMARY

A. General Works Package Contractor #2 is responsible for daily cleanup and a final cleaning prior to occupancy. This section only addresses the final cleaning required prior to punch listing and occupancy.

B. Cleaning Program:

- 1. The cleaning program shall include all construction areas and surrounding areas affected by the construction including site, exteriors of buildings / structures, roofs and interior of buildings.
- 2. The areas to be cleaned shall be turned over to the owner in a "move-in" condition.
- 3. All areas shall be free of all construction materials, dust, debris, markings and dirt.
- 4. All surfaces shall be washed, cleaned and cleared of markings.
- 5. All existing and new fixtures shall be cleaned, sanitized and ready for use.
- 6. All new and existing hard surface floors will be stripped and waxed.

1.02 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Comply fully with Federal and local environmental and antipollution regulations.
- B. Do not dispose of volatile wastes, such as mineral spirits, oil, or paint thinner, in storm or sanitary drains.
- C. Burning or burying of debris, rubbish, or other waste material on the premises is not permitted.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS AND METHODS

A. Use cleaning materials and methods which will not create hazards to health or property or cause damage to products and which are recommended by manufacturers of products to be cleaned.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 FINAL CLEANING

- A. General: Provide final cleaning operations. Employ experienced workers or professional cleaners for final cleaning. Clean each surface or unit of Work to the condition expected from a commercial building cleaning and maintenance program. Comply with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Complete the following cleaning operations before requesting inspection for certification of Substantial Completion for the entire Project or a portion of the Project.

- 1. Clean the Project Site, yard and grounds, in areas disturbed by construction activities, including landscape development areas, of rubbish, waste material, litter, and foreign substances.
- 2. Sweep paved areas broom clean. Rake grounds that are neither planted nor paved to a smooth, even-textured surface.
- 3. Remove petrochemical spills, stains, and other foreign deposits.
- 4. Remove tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus material from the site.
- 5. Clean exposed exterior and interior hard-surfaced finishes to a dirt-free condition, free of stains, films, and similar foreign substances. Avoid disturbing natural weathering of exterior surfaces. Restore reflective surfaces to their original condition.
- 6. All walls not newly painted shall be washed to clean readily removable dirt, markings, dust, and grime.
- 7. Remove debris and surface dust from limited access spaces, including roofs, attics and similar spaces.
- 8. All existing floors shall be thoroughly stripped of old wax and have at least four (4) coats of a combination wax/sealer, or two (2) coats of sealer and four (4) coats of wax.

 General Works Package Contractor #2 shall submit for prior approval manufactures information on floor finish to be applied. All new floors shall have their factory seal stripped off and shall have a floor finish applied according to the recommendations of the manufacturer.
- 9. New carpeted areas shall be thoroughly vacuumed, including edges. Any spotting during construction shall be removed. Existing carpeted areas shall be thoroughly shampooed.
- 10. Clean transparent materials, including mirrors and glass in doors and windows. Remove glazing compounds and other substances that are noticeable vision obscuring materials. Replace chipped or broken glass and other damaged transparent materials. Polish mirrors and glass, taking care not to scratch surfaces. Clean interior and exterior of all windows.
- Clean all Toilet Rooms thoroughly and sanitized. All wall surfaces shall be free of grime, dirt, dust, markings and graffiti. All mirrors, fixtures, and partitions will be cleaned free of dirt and markings.
- 12. Scrub and seal all ceramic and terrazzo floors and walls.
- 13. Remove labels that are not Portable labels.
- 14. Touch up and otherwise repair and restore marred, exposed finishes and surfaces. Replace finishes and surfaces that cannot be satisfactorily repaired or restored or that already show evidence of repair or restoration.
- 15. Wipe surfaces of mechanical and electrical equipment, elevator equipment, and similar equipment. Remove excess lubrication, paint and mortar droppings, and other foreign substances.
- 16. Clean plumbing fixtures to a sanitary condition, free of stains, including stains resulting from water exposure.
- 17. Replace disposable air filters and clean Portable air filters. Clean all exposed surfaces of Center Joint Unified School District Dudley ES Paint Portable Buildings

- diffusers, registers, and grilles.
- 18. Clean ducts, blowers, and coils if units were operated without filters during construction.
- 19. Clean light fixtures, lamps, globes, and reflectors to function with full efficiency. Replace burned out bulbs; defective and noisy starters in fluorescent fixtures, and defective dimming switches.
- 20. Leave the Project clean and ready for occupancy.
- 21. Removal of Protection: Remove temporary protection and facilities installed during construction to protect previously completed installations during the remainder of the construction period. Repair any damage from removal.
- 22. Compliances: Comply with governing regulations and safety standards for cleaning operations.
- 23. Remove waste materials from the site and dispose of lawfully.
- 24. Where extra materials of value remain after completion of associated Work, they become the Owner's property. Dispose of these materials as directed by the Owner.

SECTION 09 90 00

EXTERIOR PAINTS AND COATINGS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Exterior paint and coating systems including surface preparation.

1.2 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Warranty and Guarantee Obligations - Terms and Conditions, Section 13.

1.3 REFERENCES

- A. Steel Structures Painting Council (SSPC):
 - 1. SSPC-SP 1 Solvent Cleaning.
 - 2. SSPC-SP 2 Hand Tool Cleaning.
 - 3. SSPC-SP 3 Power Tool Cleaning.
 - 4. SSPC-SP 13 / NACE No. 6 Surface Preparation for Concrete.
- B. Material Safety Data Sheets / Environmental Data Sheets: Per manufacturer's MSDS/EDS for specific VOCs (calculated per 40 CFR 59.406). VOCs may vary by base and sheen.
- C. California Department of Public Health (CDPH):
 - CDPH v1.1-2010 and V1.2-2017

1.4 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit under provisions of Terms and Conditions, Section 2.
- B. Product Data: For each paint system indicated, including.
 - 1. Product characteristics.
 - 2. Surface preparation instructions and recommendations.
 - 3. Primer requirements and finish specification.
 - 4. Storage and handling requirements and recommendations.
 - 5. Application methods.
 - 6. Cautions for storage, handling and installation.
- C. Selection Samples: Submit a complete set of color chips that represent the full range of manufacturer's products, colors, and sheens available.
- D. Verification Samples: For each finished product specified, submit samples that represent the actual product, color, and sheen.

- E. Coating Maintenance Manual: Upon conclusion of project, the Contractor or paint manufacturer/supplier shall furnish a coating maintenance manual, such as Sherwin-Williams, "Custodian Project Color and Product Information" report or equal. Manual shall include an Area Summary with finish schedule, Area Detail designating where each product/color/finish was used, product data pages, Material Safety Data Sheets, care and cleaning instructions, touch-up procedures, and color samples of each color and finish used.
- F. Only submit complying products based on project requirements (i.e. LEED). One must also comply with the regulations regarding VOCs (CARB, OTC, SCAQMD, LADCO). To ensure compliance with district regulations and other rules, businesses that perform coating activities should contact the local district in each area where the coating will be used.

1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Installer Qualifications: A firm or individual experienced in applying paints and coatings similar in material, design, and extent to those indicated for this Project, whose work has resulted in applications with a record of successful in-service performance.
- B. Paint exposed surfaces. If a color of finish, or a surface is not specifically mentioned, Architect will select from standard products, colors, and sheens available.
- C. Do not paint prefinished items, concealed surfaces, finished metal surfaces, operating parts, and labels unless indicated.
- D. Mock-Up: Provide a mock-up for evaluation of surface preparation techniques and application workmanship.
 - 1. Finish surfaces for verification of products, colors, and sheens.
 - 2. Finish area designated by Architect.
 - 3. Provide samples that designate primer and finish coats.
 - 4. Compatibility and Adhesion: Check after one week of drying and curing by testing in accordance with ASTM D3359; Adhesion by tape test. If the coating system is incompatible, additional surface preparation up to and including complete removal may be required.
 - 5. Do not proceed with remaining work until the Architect approves the mock-up.

1.6 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Delivery: Deliver manufacturer's unopened containers to the work site. Packaging shall bear the manufacturer's name, label, and the following list of information.
 - 1. Product name, and type (description).
 - 2. Application and use instructions.
 - 3. Surface preparation.
 - 4. VOC content.
 - 5. Environmental handling.
 - Batch date.
 - 7. Color number.

- B. Storage: Store and dispose of solvent-based materials, and materials used with solvent-based materials, in accordance with requirements of local authorities having jurisdiction.
- C. Store materials in an area that is within the acceptable temperature range, per manufacturer's instructions. Protect from freezing.
- D. Handling: Maintain a clean, dry storage area, to prevent contamination or damage to the coatings.

1.7 PROJECT CONDITIONS

A. Maintain environmental conditions (temperature, humidity, and ventilation) within limits recommended by manufacturer for optimum results. Do not install products under environmental conditions outside manufacturer's recommended limits.

1.8 EXTRA MATERIALS

- A. Furnish extra paint materials from the same production run as the materials applied and, in the quantities, described below. Package with protective covering for storage and identify with labels describing contents. Deliver extra materials to Owner.
- B. Furnish Owner with an additional one percent of each material and color, but not less than 1 gal (3.8 l) or 1 case, as appropriate.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.1 MANUFACTURERS

A. Basis of Design & District Standard Manufacturer: Sherwin-Williams

Architectural Contact: Richard.condie@sherwin.com

800-524-5979; Tel: 216-566-2000; Fax: 440-826-1989; Email: request infospecifications@sherwin.com; Web:www.swspecs.com.

B. Or Equal. Requests for substitutions will be considered in accordance with the Terms and Conditions, Section 4.2.

2.2 APPLICATIONS/SCOPE

- A. Exterior Paint and Coating Systems:
 - 1. Masonry: Concrete masonry units, cinder, or concrete block.
 - 2. Metal: Miscellaneous iron, ornamental iron, ferrous metal.
 - 3. Wood: Siding, trim, shutters, sash, and miscellaneous hardboard.

2.3 PAINT MATERIALS - GENERAL

- A. Paints and Coatings:
 - 1. Unless otherwise indicated, provide factory-mixed coatings. When required, mix coatings to correct consistency in accordance with manufacturer's instructions before application. Do not reduce, thin, or dilute coatings or add materials to coatings unless such procedure is specifically described in manufacturer's product instructions.
 - 2. For opaque finishes, tint each coat including primer coat and intermediate coats, one-

half shade lighter than succeeding coat, with final finish coat as base color. Or follow manufactures product instructions for optimal color conformance.

- B. Primers: Where the manufacturer offers options on primers for a particular substrate, use a primer categorized as "best" by the manufacturer.
- C. Coating Application Accessories: Provide all primers, sealers, cleaning agents, cleaning cloths, sanding materials, and clean-up materials required, per manufacturer's specifications.
- D. Color: Refer to Finish Schedule for paint colors, and as selected.

2.4 EXTERIOR PAINT AND COATING SYSTEMS

- A. Masonry: Exterior Brick.
 - 1. Clear Anti-Graffiti:
 - a. Satin Clear Finish:
 - 1st Coat: S-W TSW Acryli-Master TSW8 Anti-Graffiti. 1st coat to cover entire surface area.
 - 2) 3-4 Coats: S-W TSW Acryli-Master TSW8 Anti-Graffiti.
 - 3) TSW2R Multi-Master for graffiti removal

Refer to product data page for application instructions or call 1800-447-2334

- B. Metal: Miscellaneous. Metal Gutters, Iron, Ornamental Iron, Structural Iron and Steel, Ferrous Metal.
 - 1. Latex Systems:
 - a. Semi-Gloss Finish:
 - 1) 1st Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Pro-Cryl Universal Primer, B66-1310 Series (5.0-10.0 mils. wet, 1.8-3.6 mils. dry per coat).
 - 2) 2nd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Acrylic Semi-Gloss, B66-650.
 - 3) 3rd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Acrylic Semi-Gloss, B66-650 (2.0-4.0 mils. dry per coat).
 - 2. Water based Alkyd Systems: Metal Doors
 - a. Semi-Gloss Finish:
 - 1) 1st Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Pro-Cryl Universal Primer, B66-1310 Series (5.0 mils. wet, 2.0 mils. dry per coat).
 - 2) 2nd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Water based Alkyd Urethane Enamel Semi-Gloss, B53-1150 Series.
 - 3rd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Water based Alkyd Urethane Enamel Semi-Gloss, B53-1150 Series (4.0-5.0 mils. wet, 1.4 - 1.7 mils. dry per coat).

C. Concrete & Plaster:

- Latex Systems:
 - a. Flat Finish:
 - 1) 1st Coat: S-W Loxon Concrete and Masonry Primer Sealer, LX02W50 (5.3-8.0 mils. wet, 2.1-3.2 mils. dry per coat).
 - 2) 2nd Coat: S-W A-100 Exterior Latex Flat, A6 Series.
 - 3) 3rd Coat: S-W A-100 Exterior Latex Flat, A6 Series (4.0 mils. wet, 1.2 mils. dry per coat).
- D. Wood: Siding, Trim, Shutters, Sashes, and Hardboard-Bare/Primed.
 - 1. Latex Systems:
 - a. Semi-Gloss Finish:
 - 1) 1st Coat: S-W Exterior Latex Wood Primer, B42W8041 (4.0 mils. wet, 1.4 mils. dry per coat).
 - 2) 2nd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Acrylic Semi-Gloss, B66-650.
 - 3) 3rd Coat: S-W Pro Industrial Acrylic Semi-Gloss, B66-650 (2.0-4.0 mils. dry per coat).

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

- A. Do not begin installation until the substrates have been properly prepared; notify Architect of unsatisfactory conditions before proceeding. If substrate preparation is the responsibility of another installer, notify Architect of unsatisfactory preparation before proceeding.
- B. Proceed with work only after conditions have been corrected and approved by all parties, otherwise application of coatings will be considered as an acceptance of surface conditions.
- C. Previously Painted Surfaces: Verify that existing painted surfaces do not contain lead based paints, notify Architect immediately if lead based paints are encountered.

3.2 SURFACE PREPARATION

- A. General: Surfaces shall be dry and in sound condition. Remove oil, dust, dirt, loose rust, peeling paint, or other contamination to ensure good adhesion.
 - Prior to attempting to remove mildew, it is recommended to test any cleaner on a small, inconspicuous area prior to use. Bleach and bleaching type cleaners may damage or discolor existing paint films. Bleach alternative cleaning solutions are advised.
 - 2. Remove mildew before painting by washing with a solution of 1 part liquid household bleach and 3 parts of warm water. Apply solution and scrub the mildewed area. Allow solution to remain on the surface for 10 minutes. Rinse thoroughly with clean water

and allow the surface to dry before painting. Wear protective glasses or goggles, waterproof gloves, and protective clothing. Quickly wash off any of the mixture that comes in contact with your skin. Do not add detergents or ammonia to the bleach/water solution.

- 3. Remove items including but not limited to thermostats, electrical outlets, switch covers and similar items prior to painting. After completing painting operations in each space or area, reinstall items removed using workers skilled in the trades involved.
- 4. No exterior painting should be done immediately after a rain, during foggy weather, when rain is predicted, or when the temperature is below 50 degrees F (10 degrees C), unless products are designed specifically for these conditions. On large expanses of metal siding, the air, surface, and material temperatures must be 50 degrees F (10 degrees F) or higher to use low temperature products.
- B. Aluminum: Remove all oil, grease, dirt, oxide, and other foreign material by cleaning per SSPC-SP1, Solvent Cleaning.
- C. Block (Cinder and Concrete): Remove all loose mortar and foreign material. Surface must be free of laitance, concrete dust, dirt, form release agents, moisture curing membranes, loose cement, and hardeners. Concrete and mortar must be cured at least 30 days at 75 degrees F (24 degrees C). The pH of the surface should be between 6 and 9 unless the products are designed to be used in high pH environments. On tilt-up and poured-in-place concrete, commercial detergents and abrasive blasting may be necessary to prepare the surface. Fill bug holes, air pockets, and other voids with a cement patching compound.
- D. Concrete, SSPC-SP13 or NACE 6: This standard gives requirements for surface preparation of concrete by mechanical, chemical, or thermal methods prior to the application of bonded protective coating or lining systems. The requirements of this standard are applicable to all types of cementitious surfaces including cast-in-place concrete floors and walls, precast slabs, masonry walls, and shotcrete surfaces. An acceptable prepared concrete surface should be free of contaminants, laitance, loosely adhering concrete, and dust, and should provide a sound, uniform substrate suitable for the application of protective coating or lining systems.
- E. Cement Composition Siding/Panels: Remove all surface contamination by washing with an appropriate cleaner, rinse thoroughly and allow to dry. Existing peeled or checked paint should be scraped and sanded to a sound surface. Pressure clean, if needed, with a minimum of 2100 psi pressure to remove all dirt, dust, grease, oil, loose particles, laitance, foreign material, and peeling or defective coatings. Allow the surface to dry thoroughly. The pH of the surface should be between 6 and 9 unless the products are designed to be used in high pH environments.
- F. Copper and Stainless Steel: Remove all oil, grease, dirt, oxide, and other foreign material by cleaning per SSPC-SP 2, Hand Tool Cleaning.
- G. Exterior Composition Board (Hardboard): Some composition boards may exude a waxy material that must be removed with a solvent prior to coating. Whether factory primed or unprimed, exterior composition board siding (hardboard) must be cleaned thoroughly and primed with an alkyd primer.
- H. Drywall Exterior: Must be clean and dry. All nail heads must be set and spackled. Joints must be taped and covered with a joint compound. Spackled nail heads and tape joints must be sanded smooth, and all dust removed prior to painting. Exterior surfaces must be spackled with exterior grade compounds.
- I. Drywall Interior: Must be clean and dry. All nail heads must be set and spackled. Joints

- must be taped and covered with a joint compound. Spackled nail heads and tape joints must be sanded smooth, and all dust removed prior to painting.
- J. Galvanized Metal: Clean per SSPC-SP1 using detergent and water or a degreasing cleaner to remove greases and oils. Apply to a test area, priming as required. Allow the coating to dry at least one week before testing. If adhesion is poor, Brush Blast per SSPC-SP16 is necessary to remove these treatments.
- K. Plaster: Must be allowed to dry thoroughly for at least 30 days before painting unless the products are designed to be used in high pH environments. Room must be ventilated while drying; in cold, damp weather, rooms must be heated. Damaged areas must be repaired with appropriate patching material. Bare plaster must be cured and hard. Textured, soft, porous, or powdery plaster should be treated with a solution of 1 pint household vinegar to 1 gallon of water. Repeat until the surface is hard, rinse with clear water and allow to dry.
- L. Steel: Structural, Plate, And Similar Items: Should be cleaned by one or more of the surface preparations described below. These methods are used throughout the world for describing methods for cleaning structural steel. Visual standards are available through the Society of Protective Coatings. A brief description of these standards together with numbers by which they can be specified follow.
 - Solvent Cleaning, SSPC-SP1: Solvent cleaning is a method for removing all visible oil, grease, soil, drawing and cutting compounds, and other soluble contaminants. Solvent cleaning does not remove rust or mill scale. Change rags and cleaning solution frequently so that deposits of oil and grease are not spread over additional areas in the cleaning process. Be sure to allow adequate ventilation.
 - 2. Hand Tool Cleaning, SSPC-SP2: Hand Tool Cleaning removes all loose mill scale, loose rust, and other detrimental foreign matter. It is not intended that adherent mill scale, rust, and paint be removed by this process. Beforehand tool cleaning, remove visible oil, grease, soluble welding residues, and salts by the methods outlined in SSPC-SP1.
 - 3. Power Tool Cleaning, SSPC-SP3: Power Tool Cleaning removes all loose mill scale, loose rust, and other detrimental foreign matter. It is not intended that adherent mill scale, rust, and paint be removed by this process. Before power tool cleaning, remove visible oil, grease, soluble welding residues, and salts by the methods outlined in SSPC-SP1.
 - 4. White Metal Blast Cleaning, SSPC-SP5 or NACE 1: A White Metal Blast Cleaned surface, when viewed without magnification, shall be free of all visible oil, grease, dirt, dust, mill scale, rust, paint, oxides, corrosion products, and other foreign matter. Before blast cleaning, visible deposits of oil or grease shall be removed by any of the methods specified in SSPC-SP1 or other agreed upon methods.
 - 5. Commercial Blast Cleaning, SSPC-SP6 or NACE 3: A Commercial Blast Cleaned surface, when viewed without magnification, shall be free of all visible oil, grease, dirt, dust, mill scale, rust, paint, oxides, corrosion products, and other foreign matter, except for staining. Staining shall be limited to no more than 33 percent of each square inch of surface area and may consist of light shadows, slight streaks, or minor discoloration caused by stains of rust, stains of mill scale, or stains of previously applied paint. Before blast cleaning, visible deposits of oil or grease shall be removed by any of the methods specified in SSPC-SP1 or other agreed upon methods.
 - 6. Brush-Off Blast Cleaning, SSPC-SP7 or NACE 4: A Brush-Off Blast Cleaned surface, when viewed without magnification, shall be free of all visible oil, grease, dirt, dust, loose mill scale, loose rust, and loose paint. Tightly adherent mill scale, rust, and paint may remain on the surface. Before blast cleaning, visible deposits of oil or grease shall be removed by any of the methods specified in SSPC-SP 1 or other agreed upon

methods.

- 7. Power Tool Cleaning to Bare Metal, SSPC-SP11: Metallic surfaces that are prepared according to this specification, when viewed without magnification, shall be free of all visible oil, grease, dirt, dust, mill scale, rust, paint, oxide corrosion products, and other foreign matter. Slight residues of rust and paint may be left in the lower portions of pits if the original surface is pitted. Prior to power tool surface preparation, remove visible deposits of oil or grease by any of the methods specified in SSPC-SP1, Solvent Cleaning, or other agreed upon methods.
- 8. Near-White Blast Cleaning, SSPC-SP10 or NACE 2: A Near White Blast Cleaned surface, when viewed without magnification, shall be free of all visible oil, grease, dirt, dust, mill scale, rust, paint, oxides, corrosion products, and other foreign matter, except for staining. Staining shall be limited to no more than 5 percent of each square inch of surface area and may consist of light shadows, slight streaks, or minor discoloration caused by stains of rust, stains of mill scale, or stains of previously applied paint. Before blast cleaning, visible deposits of oil or grease shall be removed by any of the methods specified in SSPC-SP1 or other agreed upon methods.
- 9. High- and Ultra-High Pressure Water Jetting for Steel and Other Hard Materials: SSPC-SP12 or NACE 5: This standard provides requirements for the use of high- and ultra-high pressure water jetting to achieve various degrees of surface cleanliness. This standard is limited in scope to the use of water only without the addition of solid particles in the stream.
- 10. Water Blasting, SSPC-SP12/NACE No. 5: Removal of oil grease dirt, loose rust, loose mill scale, and loose paint by water at pressures of 2,000 to 2,500 psi at a flow of 4 to 14 gallons per minute.
- M. Vinyl Siding, Architectural Plastics, EIFS and Fiberglass: Clean vinyl siding thoroughly by scrubbing with a warm, soapy water solution. Rinse thoroughly. Do not paint vinyl siding with any color darker than the original color unless the paint system features Sherwin-Williams VinylSafe technology. Painting with darker colors that are not Sherwin-Williams VinylSafe may cause siding to warp. Follow all painting guidelines of the vinyl manufacturer when painting. Only paint properly installed vinyl siding. Deviating from the manufacturer's painting guidelines may cause the warranty to be voided.
- N. Stucco: Must be clean and free of any loose stucco. If recommended procedures for applying stucco are followed, and normal drying conditions prevail, the surface may be painted in 30 days. The pH of the surface should be between 6 and 9 unless the products are designed to be used in high pH environments such as Loxon.
- O. Wood: Must be clean and dry. Prime and paint as soon as possible. Knots and pitch streaks must be scraped, sanded, and spot primed before a full priming coat is applied. Patch all nail holes and imperfections with a wood filler or putty and sand smooth.

3.3 INSTALLATION

- A. Apply all coatings and materials with the manufacturer's specifications in mind. Mix and thin coatings according to manufacturer's recommendations.
- B. Do not apply it to wet or damp surfaces. Wait at least 30 days before applying to new concrete or masonry. Or follow manufacturer's procedures to apply appropriate coatings prior to 30 days. Test new concrete for moisture content. Wait until wood is fully dry after rain or morning fog or dew.
- C. Apply coatings using methods recommended by manufacturer.

- D. Uniformly apply coatings without runs, drips, or sags, without brush marks, and with consistent sheen.
- E. Apply coatings at spreading rate required to achieve the manufacturers recommended dry film thickness.
- F. Regardless of the number of coats specified, apply as many coats as necessary for complete hide, and uniform appearance.
- G. Inspection: The coated surface must be inspected and approved by the Architect just prior to the application of each coat.

3.4 PROTECTION

- A. Protect finished coatings from damage until completion of project.
- B. Touch-up damaged coatings after substantial completion, following manufacturer's recommendation for touch up or repair of damaged coatings. Repair any defects that will hinder the performance of the coatings.

END OF SECTION

